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Dear Minister
On behalf of the Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust, I have great
pleasure in presenting the 2013–14 Annual Report of the Royal Botanic
Gardens and Domain Trust for presentation to Parliament.
This report covers in full the Trust’s activities and Statement of Accounts
in accordance with the Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust Act 1980,
the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984 and the Annual Reports
(Statutory Bodies) Regulation 2010.
Yours sincerely

Ken Boundy
Chairman

Kim Ellis
Executive Director
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| Spring Walk at the Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
| Lunchtime sporting activities in the Domain
| AnnanRoma local food and wine festival, at the Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan
| The Formal Garden at the Blue Mountains Botanic Garden, Mount Tomah

Contents
Our Organisation
Chairman’s Report

5

Executive Director’s Report

6

Key Achievements 2013 –14

7

Highlights against Strategic Plan

8

Science and Conservation

12

The Australian Plantbank

13

The National Herbarium

13

Research and Conservation

14

Horticulture and Asset Management

18

Our Infrastructure

19

Managing our Living Collection

20

Sustaining the Environment

22

Community Engagement

25

Education

26

Visitor Programs

27

Volunteering

29

Support and Community

29

Foundation and Friends

30

Development and Sponsorship

31

Venue Management

31

Financial Performance

32

Financial Statements

35

Governance and Organisational Matters

62

The Trustees

64

Risk Management

66

Organisation Structure

68

People Matters

69

Access Directory

82

We Thank

83

Index

84

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

1

Our Organisation

1 | School excursion in the Palm Grove, Royal Botanic Garden
Spring Walk, Royal Botanic Garden
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2 | Acacia kempeana

3 | Horticulturists caring for beds in the

The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust (the Trust) is a statutory
body established by the Royal
Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust
Act 1980. The legislation defines the
objectives, powers and functions of
the Trust and vests certain land and
property to the Trust.
The Trust is responsible for the
management and stewardship of
the Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney;
the Domain; the Australian Botanic
Garden, Mount Annan; the Blue
Mountains Botanic Garden, Mount
Tomah; the National Herbarium of
New South Wales; and the Australian
PlantBank.
The Trust also undertakes and
provides scientific and horticultural
research, together with advice and
education on botany, horticulture
and biodiversity.
Trust staff are employed by the
Office of Environment and Heritage,
a division of the Department of
Planning and Environment. The Board
of the Trust reports directly to the
Minister for the Environment and has
responsibility for all Trust assets and
programs.
The Trust acknowledges the
traditional custodians of Trust lands
— the Cadigal, Darug and D’harawal
— and recognises the strength,
resilience and capacity of the
Aboriginal people of these lands.

Objectives
The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust Act 1980 defines the
Trust’s objectives as to:
• maintain and improve Trust lands,
the National Herbarium of New
South Wales and the collections
of living and preserved plant life
owned by the Trust
• increase and disseminate knowledge
about the plant life of Australia, and
of New South Wales in particular

• encourage the public use and
enjoyment of Trust lands by
promoting and increasing the
educational, historical, cultural and
recreational value of these lands.

VISIBILITY: An authority on plant
conservation, science, horticulture
and education, delivering
inspirational experiences and
advocating green fundraising

When acting in pursuance of its
Objects, the Trust is required
to give particular emphasis to
encouraging and advancing the study
of systematic botany and to plant
conservation.

IMAGINATION: It’s time to start
LIVING the life you’ve imagined …

Vision
We aspire to be:
• recognised as one of the
world’s greatest botanic garden
organisations
• internationally respected as a
centre for science, conservation
and horticulture
• widely valued as world-class
managers of the Trust’s places of
learning and recreation
• renowned for bringing pleasure to all.

Mission
As a living organisation, we
connect people with plants through
imaginative horticulture, beautiful
landscapes, transformative learning
experiences and cultural events.
As a leading contributor and
custodian of botanical knowledge
and collections throughout
Australasia, we will share our
discoveries and be at the forefront of
international plant conservation.

LIVING
The vision for the Trust is defined
through six strategies that form the
2012–2015 ‘LIVING’ Strategic Plan:
LOCAL: Your Gardens partner and
engage with local communities and
organisations
INTERNATIONAL: Sharing our
knowledge and experience across the
globe to enhance the conservation of
the world’s flora

[Henry James]

NURTURE: Nurturing our people,
collections and other assets to
develop and conserve the gardens
for future generations
GROWTH: We will cultivate
opportunities for enterprise, and
engage our supporters to champion
our mission for the long term
The LIVING strategy supports NSW
2021: A Plan to Make New South
Wales Number One, the New South
Wales Government’s 10-year plan
by contributing to two goals in
particular for which the Minister for
the Environment and the Department
of Premier and Cabinet has lead
responsibility:
22. Protect our natural environment
23. Increase opportunities for
people to look after their own
neighbourhoods and environments
In addition, the Trust contributes to
Goal 24: Make it easier for people
to be involved in their communities,
which has specific targets related
to expanding opportunities within
the Trust’s volunteer programs and
increasing the number of volunteers
that support the Trust’s work.

Global Strategy for Plant
Conservation
The Trust is committed to contributing
to the objectives and targets set in the
Global Strategy for Plant Conservation,
which provides a framework for actions
at global, regional, national and local
levels to conserve plants and
vegetation communities.
ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014
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in Australia, with a world-class
collection of botanic, taxonomic and
horticultural literature.
The Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan showcases the
enormous diversity of Australian flora.
Covering more than 400 hectares
between Camden and Campbelltown
in Sydney’s south-west, it is Australia’s
largest botanic garden. Its horticultural
displays contrast with natural areas of
remnant Cumberland Plain Woodland,
an endangered ecological community
of the region. With its large size and
undulating terrain, the Garden is a
popular recreational destination for
the local community.
The Strategy has five key objectives:
• Plant diversity is well understood,
documented and recognised
• Plant diversity is urgently and
effectively conserved
• Plant diversity is used in a
sustainable and equitable manner
• Education and awareness about
plant diversity, its role in sustainable
livelihoods and importance to all
life on earth is promoted
• The capacities and public
engagement necessary to
implement the strategy have been
developed.
A summary of the Trust’s activities
against these objectives is provided
in the Appendices.

Our Gardens
The Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
is the oldest botanic garden and
scientific institution in Australia. It is
home to an outstanding collection
of plants from around the world,
with a focus on Australia and the
South Pacific. The 30 hectares of
Botanic Garden are surrounded by

4
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34 hectares of urban parkland known
as the Domain. Both the Garden and
Domain are endowed with significant
natural and cultural heritage values,
and play a central role in Sydney’s
festivals and cultural events, as well as
the recreational and sporting pursuits
of city workers and residents.

The Trust’s horticultural research
facilities are based at the Australian
Botanic Garden, Mount Annan,
including the New South Wales
Seedbank — a key component of the
Trust’s new research and conservation
facility, the award-winning Australian
PlantBank.

Within the Royal Botanic Garden,
Sydney is the National Herbarium
of New South Wales, a major centre
for Australian plant research. The
Herbarium contains more than
1.2 million plant specimens, including
scientific and historically significant
collections and samples gathered
by Banks and Solander during the
voyage of the Endeavour in 1770.

The Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden, Mount Tomah is situated
on a basalt-capped peak, 1000
metres above sea level in the
World Heritage-listed Greater Blue
Mountains. It features 28 hectares of
manicured gardens showcasing coolclimate plants from around the world
and is home to the Greater Blue
Mountains World Heritage
Exhibition Centre.

The collection provides important
reference material for studies of
plants, their relationships and
classification. Research includes
field studies, DNA sequencing and
scanning electron microscopy.
Within the Herbarium is the Library
of the Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust. It is the premier
botanical and horticultural library

The botanical collection sits
adjacent to 10 hectares of pristine,
warm temperate rainforest within
a 33-hectare heritage property
known as ‘The Jungle’. Separated by
Bells Line of Road, the Garden also
manages a conservation area of 189
hectares of wet and dry sclerophyll
forest including heath, rainforest and
some closed forest.

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

team led by Kim will allow all three
to achieve excellence towards our
core goal of connecting people
with plants.

As a result of the integration, the
Trust was delighted to welcome
Mr Kim Ellis to the new role of
Executive Director Botanic Gardens
and Centennial Parklands and in
March 2014. Kim brings an excellent
track record of leading people on
a journey, achieving stretch goals,
and change management. His recent
achievements at CP&MPT and
Bankstown Airport are testament to
his capability.

Given the increasing commercial
imperatives facing the organisation,
we need to look for ways of bringing
in non-Government and nonphilanthropic revenue. The Domain
provides the opportunity for greater
commercial revenue generation from
selected events and activities. The
Domain is a significantly different
space from the Garden and lends itself
to an entertainment space, as well as
sport and recreation space for visitors.

Kim is currently surrounding himself
with a high performing executive
team. Each of our three Gardens has
the potential to be more important
in a global context for what they
represent, and the new executive

I want to acknowledge the work of
our many volunteers who give so
much of their time and passion to
our gardens. I also want to thank,
on behalf of the Trust, the work
of our Foundation and Friends in

Photo: Tamara Dean

The decision to integrate the
management teams of the Centennial
Park and Moore Park Trust (CP&MPT)
with those of the RBG&DT provided
the scope to attract excellent talent
to better remunerated leadership
positions, drive efficiencies through
synergies and to attract more
commercial and philanthropic
revenue.

The release of the draft Master
Plan for the Royal Botanic Garden
and Domain for public comment
was not without controversy. Still,
that is what the consultation period
for any master plan is all about —
good debate for better and more
considered outcomes. It’s important
to note that a master plan is a
reference document for the next
thirty years and does not signal
intent to start any particular project.
The integrity and core functions
of the Gardens will be protected
at all costs — and are recognised
within the plan. The draft Master
Plan also flags the development of
pathways, plantings and themes that
will help better public engagement
and interpretation for the 3,800,000
visitors annually. For example,
we look forward to seeing some
spectacular horticultural displays
in the gardens in the year ahead
and in the planned Biome, due for
completion during our bicentennial
year in 2016.

In the context of its almost two
hundred year history, 2013 –14 will be
seen as an important transition year
for the Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust (RBG&DT).

reaching out to the community and
encouraging people to become
involved and at times, to donate.
It is important that I also
acknowledge the contribution of
our previous Executive Director
David Mabberley, who left the role in
August 2013. David is a fine botanist
and communicator and I am pleased
to see him still in the fold.
As Chairman, one has the privilege
of representing the organisation
in many ways and also working
with a team of committed and
competent individuals who come
together to form our team on the
Trust. I acknowledge the excellent
contribution of three of these
Trustees — Tom Pinzone (eight years),
Sybille Krieger (four years) and John
Egan (four years) who all retired
during the period of this report. We
value what each of them has brought
to the organisation, and know
that they will remain friends of the
Gardens and be available for advice.
I also wish to acknowledge the strong
support given by our former Minister,
Robyn Parker in her tenure, and
warmly welcome the new Minister,
Rob Stokes. Thanks also to the former
head of Office of Environment and
Heritage, Sally Barnes and welcome to
her successor Terry Bailey.
Finally, thanks to our staff for their
focus on their jobs and outcomes
during a year of considerable
turbulence. I am confident that the
organisation has emerged from this
period stronger, and well positioned
to flourish and achieve its goals over
the next five years.

Ken Boundy

Chair
Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust
ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Prior to my appointment, the wheels
were set in motion by my predecessor
Professor David Mabberley to
produce the first Master Plan for
the Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
and Domain in their almost 200 year
history.

I was thrilled and humbled to be
appointed as Executive Director,
Sydney Parklands and Botanic
Gardens in March 2014. This has
to be one of the most iconic and
important garden and parkland
roles in the world and I take the
responsibility very seriously.
When the decision was announced
by the Office of Environment and
Heritage to integrate the operations
of the Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust with Centennial
Parklands, I was enthusiastic about
the potential enormous community
and visitor benefits the combined
portfolio of sites would offer the
public. The financial benefits will
be reinvested in new science and
education programs, better customer
services and management systems —
all of which will improve the Botanic
Gardens and Centennial Parklands for
the community.

6
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The draft Master Plan offers a unique
opportunity to explore a holistic
landscape concept that connects the
scientific purpose of the facility with
the physical setting of the layout and
display of the Garden and Domain.
The Master Plan has the potential to
recast the identity and function of
these open spaces as a living working
textbook. Our vision is to ensure
the Royal Botanic Garden and the
Domain continue to convey a
perfect expression of Sydney as a
forward thinking, innovating and
sustainable city informed by history
and wisdom of the past with a 21st
century layer.
In addition to these major milestones,
over the past financial year we have
realised significant achievements and
goals at each of our Botanic Gardens,
the Domain and the National
Herbarium of NSW.
The opening of the Australian
PlantBank at the Australian Botanic
Garden, Mount Annan in October
2013 is a testimony to the expertise
and quest for perfection by the
project team. This masterpiece
picked up two prestigious honours at
the NSW Architectural Awards in the
‘Public Architecture’ and ‘Sustainable
Architecture’ categories. As a winner,
the Australian PlantBank progressed

to the National Architecture Awards.
The Blue Mountains Botanic Garden,
Mount Tomah successfully applied
for a $50,000 grant from Destination
NSW to improve the World Heritage
Exhibition Centre visitor experience
and build upon increased visitation
since free entry was introduced in
2011. The funds will be matched by
the Trust.
I applaud the work of our Science and
Conservation Branch led by Dr Brett
Summerell. They have achieved many
successes, including the world-first
development of Restore & Renew
NSW, a ground-breaking initiative
which will provide long-term, selfsustainable and cost-effective land
management and restoration data
in efforts to restore land impacted
by environmental factors such as
climate change.
I am grateful for the efforts of all our
staff, volunteers and Foundation
and Friends for their energy
and commitment to be ‘Always
Growing’ towards safeguarding
our three Gardens and the Domain
and providing unforgettable
experiences while we inspire plant
conservationists.

Kim Ellis

Executive Director
Botanic Gardens and Centennial
Parklands

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 2013 –14

• Opened the award-winning
conservation centre, the Australian
PlantBank — incorporating extensive
laboratories and the Trust’s seed
vault — at the Australian Botanic
Garden, Mount Annan.
• Facilitated 47,853 hours of
volunteer labour and programs,
yielding $1,052,500 of benefit
to the Trust and Foundation and
Friends. This represents an increase
in volunteer hours of 10 per cent
over and above the 2012–2013
reporting period.
• Discovered and described 36 new
species of plants, algae and fungi
as part of the Trust’s scientific
research program documenting
biodiversity in Australia.
• Realised the Trust’s $1,400,000
fundraising target for the five-year
Rainforest Seed Conservation
Program.

| Restoration of the historic Farm Cove
Sea Wall

• Achieved a digital education
milestone — supported by HSBC
— with launch of The Persoonia
Learning Laboratory in which
traditional face-to-face teaching
has been augmented by a dynamic
new capacity to deliver interactive
online lessons, with the potential
to communicate the plant sciences
to vastly expanded new audiences
across Australia and internationally.
• Completed the heritage restoration
of approximately 160 metres of the
historic Farm Cove Sea Wall at a
cost of $8,600,000.
• Achieved national recognition in
sustainable event management at
the prestigious Australian Event
Awards — recognising the Trust’s
Harbourlights New Year’s Eve
public event as an outstanding
achievement in sustainability.

• Revitalised the historic Palm
Grove precinct at the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney with the
rejuvenation of significant heritage
trees made possible by the
continued success of the flying fox
relocation program.
• Partnered with the Royal
Australian Navy — during the
2013 International Fleet Review
commemorating the centenary of
the Navy’s first entry into Sydney
Harbour — to attract 63,000
members of the public to the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney and the
Domain over a nine-day period.
• Secured ongoing sponsorship from
HSBC Bank Australia as a Principal
Partner to the Trust, delivering
funding for landmark conservation
and education programs, and
marking a milestone of more than
14 years of ongoing HSBC support.

| Getting the facts via a smartphone app at the Australian PlantBank Open Day during
Science Week

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014
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KEY RESULT AREA

LIVING — THE STRATEGIC PLAN
HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2013 –14
LOCAL

INTERNATIONAL

VISIBILTY

Your Gardens partner and engage
with local communities and
organisations.

We will share our knowledge and
experience across the globe to
enhance the conservation for the
world’s flora.

A respected voice on plant
conservation, science, horticulture
and education delivering
inspirational experiences and
advocating green fundraising.

• As the pre-eminent botanic garden
organisation in the region we will
share our expertise and experiences
with key organisations nationally
• We will develop partnerships and
alliances with other organisations to
expand our influence, community
footprint and participation, and
income-generating streams

• International collaboration with
leading organisations to support
the exploration and conservation
of the world’s plant and fungal
diversity
• We will develop capacity in
research, training and education to
support conservation practitioners
in the Asia-Pacific region

• Transformative botanical
experiences reflecting the
fundamental role of plants
• We extol LIVING in our operations
and relationships with the public
and other organisations
• Improve awareness and regard
for the scientific, conservation,
horticultural and education
activities of the Trust

KEY OUTCOMES

• Databased 9860 specimens and
mounted 7768 acquisitions for
the Herbarium
• Funded by NSW Environmental
Trust, we worked in conjunction
with local Greening Australia
and Cumberland Plain Seeds, to
establish over 10,000 plants which
will produce high quality seed for
restoration of cleared African olive
at the Australian Botanic Garden

• The Australian Botanic Garden
provided technical training to three
visiting staff from Bidoup Nui Ba
National Park, Vietnam

• The Australian Botanic Garden
provided work experience for
12 students from four local high
schools and provided nursery
experience for six disabled students
via the DET Experience Community
Employment Link program

• Two Horticultural staff travelled to
Laos to provide training in nursery
and horticulture skills, providing
instruction for 10 people.

• Partnered with other local
attractions e.g. Taronga Zoo and
Art Gallery of NSW for mutual
marketing and visitor research
• Worked with state and local
government and private sector to
manage and present over 40 public
events in our spaces and made our
spaces available for thousands of
smaller private bookings
• Renewed funding from partner
Housing NSW for Community
Greening Program

• The Trust established an
Memorandum of Understanding
with Pha Tad Ke Botanical Garden
for capacity building outcomes

• Volunteer guides showcased
Climate Watch Trail to HRH Princess
Laurentien of the Netherlands as
President of the Fauna and Flora
Foundation International.

• Autumn in Your Gardens, our
flagship festival that showcases
our work and resources with
the community. Across the
three Gardens we entertained,
educated and inspired domestic
and international visitors via art
workshops, opera, guided walks,
exhibitions, food and wine festivals
featuring locally grown produce
• Created an event, HarbourlightsNYE demonstrating award
winning sustainable practices
while educating patrons from 260
postcodes (124 internationals) for a
212% return on investment
• Save a Species — eight enthusiastic
staff walked 123 km in the Blue
Mountains to raise over $10,000 to
save five endangered plant species
• Four apprentices (including one
Aboriginal identified position)
completed their four year course.
Four school students each
completed 35 hrs work experience
and university students completed
32 days of onsite training
• Community & Education Programs
engaged 32,069 people in
educational activities during the year
• Provided specialist propagation
consultancies that support four
plant recovery programs

8

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

IMAGINATION

NURTURE

GROWTH

It’s time to start LIVING the life
you’ve imagined … (Henry James)

We will nurture our people,
collections and other assets to
develop and conserve the Gardens
for future generations.

We will cultivate opportunities
for enterprise and engage our
supporters to champion our mission
for the long-term.

• Our staff and volunteer
development is acknowledged
industry-wide. We provide
opportunity, encouragement and
support to our people and lead the
way in our specialised fields

• We will cultivate business
development, client relationships
and commercial opportunities to
attract visitors, leverage intellectual
property and maximise income
generation

• Our collections are developed and
managed to world-class standards
to ensure relevance and access

• We will embed fundraising into the
mission, vision and culture of our
organisation to secure long-term,
recurrent financial support

• We will challenge the way we do
things, exploring opportunities for
the creative use of all our assets,
landscapes and facilities
• We will excite and inform through
education programs that are both
innovative and imaginative
• Adopt a trans-disciplinary approach
that provides holistic solutions
to plant conservation outcomes
nationally and internationally
• Employing new technologies and
marketing trends to ensure we
stand out as an innovative and
creative organisation worthy of
support
• Her Excellency Professor the
Honourable Dame Marie Bashir
AD CVO, Governor of New South
Wales opened the Australian
Plantbank in October 2013. It
already holds 25% of Australia’s
flora in seed form, tissue cultures,
mychorrizal fungi and spores for
use by scientists and conservation
practitioner and future ‘rainy day
needs’
• Some 633 students attended virtual
excursions via video-conference
from PlantBank’s Persoonia
Learning Laboratory which was
supported by HSBC Bank Australia
• The Trust harnessed innovative
technology to assist and inspire
our visitors with 1262 people
downloading the new PlantBank
self-guided trail app, and 999
people visiting the Australian
PlantBank education microsite
• Completed tender process for
Biome Projecting horticultural
exhibition space with a purposebuilt foyer, reception area and
amenities space complete.

• Renewal and redevelopment of our
assets enhances visitor experience,
access and safety, and ensures our
collections, research and education
programs are provided with stateof-the-art facilities
• Curator Manager of the Royal
Botanic Garden Sydney approved
leave to complete a two year
scholarship at Longwood Gardens
Philadelphia
• The Foundation and Friends of
the Botanic Gardens awarded five
scholarships to staff to extend and
deepen their knowledge and skills
to apply within Trust.
• The Australian PlantBank has
already
o had over 5000 visitors
o 540 volunteer guided tours
o 250 behind the scenes tours with
a scientist
• Seven acres of African olive weed
have been cleared at the Australian
Botanic Garden

• Development and roll-out of a
Communications Toolkit for staff
when engaging and communicating
with the public about their work.
The heart of the toolkit is the
internal idea of ‘Inspiring Plant
Conservationists’ with the outward
facing tagline ‘Always Growing’
developed for use externally
• The Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden is the first garden to
be awarded Advanced ECO
Certification in Eco tourism by
Eco-tourism Australia
• Increased engagement from
the Sydney business community
following the establishment of the
Corporate Club. 28 organisations
now provide the Trust with financial
and in-kind support
• Implemented a community
fundraising strategy with
Foundation and Friends of the
Botanic Gardens

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014
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KEY FOCUS
10

LOCAL

INTERNATIONAL

VISIBILTY

Your Gardens partner and engage
with local communities and
organisations.

We will share our knowledge and
experience across the globe to
enhance the conservation for the
world’s flora.

A respected voice on plant
conservation, science, horticulture
and education delivering
inspirational experiences and
advocating green fundraising.

• The Community Greening and
outreach programs through
active hoticulture continued to
engage less advantaged people
such as those in public housing,
migrant centres, hospitals and jails
across the metropolitan area and
wider NSW
• Youth Community Greening
delivered curriculum-linked
plant-based activities in schools
and assisted with school
produce gardens

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

• Provision of Training to support
conservation outcomes in botanic
gardens and national parks in
neighbouring countries in Asia

• Restore & Renew: the Development
team will be seeking funding to
enable our scientists to collect
genetic, adaptive, environmental,
and ecological information to
provide guidelines for using NSW
plant species in areas that need
restoration. Funds will be used
to create a user-friendly website,
to equip relevant practitioners to
restore diverse, self-sustainable, and
adaptable vegetation

IMAGINATION

NURTURE

GROWTH

It’s time to start LIVING the life
you’ve imagined… (Henry James)

We will nurture our people,
collections and other assets to
develop and conserve the Gardens
for future generations.

We will cultivate opportunities
for enterprise and engage our
supporters to champion our mission
for the long-term.

• Work commenced on the
consolidation of the two major
heritage planning strategies (the
Conservation Management Plan
for the Royal Botanic Garden and
the Domain Plan of Management)
to create a single site wide
Conservation Management Plan for
the Sydney site. It is anticipated that
this document will be completed
late in 2014

• The Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden will begin its first facilities
upgrade since its opening in 1987.
Funding of $2,130,000 will improve
car parking, picnic seating and
barbecue facilities. Amenity blocks
and a new and upgraded sewerage
system will help service its ever
increasing visitation.

• In an exciting collaboration with
Walt Disney Australia work has
begun on a new ‘Disney Fairies
Trail’ app to bring the Gardens to
life for children. The app will be the
summertime activity for families at
all three Gardens.

• Improve irrigation around the centre
of the Sydney Garden, particularly
in the Palm Grove to ensure
longevity of horticultural exhibits
with assistance from Foundation and
Friends funding

• We will secure funding through
philanthropic and corporate
sponsors to celebrate the 200th
anniversary of the Royal Botanic
Gardens and Domain Trust, the
oldest scientific and cultural
institution in Australia.

FAR LEFT: | Vicky Brown from The Urban Beehive and Kate Faithorn, Director Public
Engagement inspect honeycomb bee hives at the Royal Botanic Garden
LEFT: | Children’s activities, Autumn in Your Gardens
ABOVE: | Community Greening is a proud supporter of the Waratah Community Garden
in Sydney’s south-west Sydney (Photo: Nicola Bailey)
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Science and Conservation

1 | Opening of the Australian PlantBank on 11 October 2013
pest control in the Herbarium

2 | Seed embryos

3 | Herbarium Curator Ifeanna Tooth helping with

Opening of the Australian
PlantBank

NSW Environmental Trust were also
generous supporters of the project.

replenish plants or plant communities
that have been lost.

The Australian PlantBank was officially
opened by Her Excellency Professor
the Honourable Dame Marie Bashir
AD CVO on 11 October 2013,
surrounded by more than 250 guests,
donors, sponsors, the PlantBank
project team and staff.

The Australian PlantBank already
holds nearly 25 per cent of Australia’s
flora in seed form as well as living
collections such as tissue cultures
and orchid mychorrizal fungi. In the
future, the Australian PlantBank will
also house collections of fern spores
and other potential regenerative
entities. As some of our native plants
do not produce seed, and others
produce seed that can’t be stored in
conventional seed storage systems,
the Australian PlantBank provides
alternative storage systems such as
tissue culture and state-of-the-art
cryogenic storage.

The Australian PlantBank would
not have been possible without a
wonderful project team including the
Royal Botanic Garden and Domain
Trust staff, Thinc Projects, BVN
Donovan Hill, Hansen Yuncken, 360
Degrees Landscape Architects and
X Squared Design.

The NSW Government contributed
$15,500,000 towards construction
costs of the Australian PlantBank. The
remaining $4,250,000 was funded
through the generous support
of corporate sponsors, Trusts,
Foundations and many individuals
including:
• HSBC Bank Australia — the Trust’s
Principal Conservation Partner and
sponsor of the Seed Vault (within
the Australian PlantBank)
• BHP Billiton Illawarra Coal —
a Trust major sponsor, and sponsor
of the Telopea Gallery and visual
interpretation to enhance visitors’
learning experience
• TransGrid — a Trust major
sponsor, and sponsor of the Seed
Processing Room and the Trust’s
conservation program since 2010
• Corrs Chambers Westgarth —
a Trust major sponsor providing
financial and legal support
• Glenlee Industrial Park
The Trust was also privileged to
receive financial support from
generous individuals, philanthropic
foundations, and government grants.
In particular, we recognise the
support received from the Ian Potter
Foundation, John T Reid Charitable
Trusts, the Jamoca Foundation,
the Neilson Foundation, the Tieck
Family, Susan Maple-Brown AM
and the late Robert Maple-Brown
AO. The Foundation and Friends
of the Botanic Gardens and the

In collaboration with the Australian
Seed Bank Partnership and the
Millennium Seed Bank, the Australian
PlantBank is a national repository
for native plant seed. PlantBank will
one day research and store all of
Australia’s native plant species and
offers the capacity to store duplicate
collections of plants in the Asia Pacific
region. PlantBank’s collections are
not to be locked away, but will be
used by scientists and conservation
practitioners, and act as a bank
repository when it is necessary to

Protecting the National
Herbarium collection
Efforts to eradicate and control
drugstore beetle continued
throughout the year. Together the
Integrated Pest Management Plan
and further structural improvements
to the Herbarium building, have
diminshed incidents of beetle
capture to close to zero. The
numbers would indicate only an
extremely small residual infestation
exist. Improvements to the building
infrastructure include the installation
of a cool store where environmental
conditions can be maintained at
museum standards (16°C and 50 per
cent relative humidity). This room will
be used to house all research material
on loan to the Herbarium. All external
and fire safety doors have been

PlantBank seed collection

At 30 June 2014

Calculation of number NSW seed bearing species
occurring (i.e. “cycads, conifers, monocots, dicots”
excluding ferns)
NSW Threatened species (OEH website)

5810
614

In seedbank:
Total collections
Total species
NSW native collections*
NSW native species
Threatened NSW collections
Threatened NSW species
% NSW seed bearing species
% Threatened NSW species

10243
5260
5237
2546
590
282
43.80%
45.90%
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upgraded to museum grade and the
Herbarium is now effectively sealed
from the outside. New insect light
traps have been installed in collection
spaces. These traps will work in
addition to the pheromone traps
and have been situated in areas of
previously-known insect infestation.
Work is still being carried out to
remove the pest from the collections.

Research and Conservation
Restore & Renew NSW
Ecological restoration projects
often rely on ad hoc guidelines
for determining the source and
type of plant material to be used,
the availability and vulnerability
of habitat (particularly in view of
climate change), and other important
questions. The objective of Restore
& Renew NSW is to provide agencies
and community groups with an easily
accessible, web-based source of
information that will guide long-term
landscape management strategies,
and facilitate decision-making during
ecological restoration practices. In
a world first, this project will take
advantage of newly-developed
technologies and economy of scale
to obtain research-based restoration
and management guidelines for more
than 200 plant species representing
the breadth of NSW’s floral diversity.
A list of 232 target species was
finalised by respondents to an
online survey of NSW restoration
practitioners and recognised experts.
We are now developing species
distribution models to help us select
hundreds of representative collection
sites within NSW. We will rely on
citizen science collection teams to
increase the feasibility of such an
extensive sampling strategy and to
directly engage the community. To
facilitate easy and accurate field data
capture, an interactive mobile phone
14
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| Picturesque rainforest in northern NSW

app is being developed in partnership
with the Atlas of Living Australia.
Genetic diversity will be measured from
these samples using our expertise in
Next Generation Sequencing
(a technique similar to that used in
the ‘Human Genome Project’). The
information produced will represent an
accurate account of the distribution of
plant diversity and of adaptive potential
in relation to landscape, climatic and
temporal variables.
This data will support the
management of healthy, resilient
landscapes through time, and
enable improved planning in
relation to habitat degradation, land
development and climate change.
Our sponsorship team has initiated a
campaign to raise the capital needed
to complete this innovative and
ambitious project.

The Australian Rainforest
Conservation Project
The opening of new facilities at the
Australian PlantBank has significantly
enhanced the activities of this project,
now in its second year. Collection
targets for seeds of eastern Australian
rainforest species were met or

exceeded. Collecting highlights
included the highly endangered
Nightcap oak (Eidothea hardeniana)
and some hard-won seeds from the
spiny entangler Lawyer vine, also
known as Wait-a-while-vine (Calamus
muelleri). All species collected were
screened in the lab for their ability
to be successfully dried and then
frozen without losing viability so
they could be stored in the seed
bank. For those species that cannot
tolerate this process, collections are
being established in living collections
at the Australian Botanic Garden.
Threatened species are also being
conserved in tissue culture, although
many will require some years of
research to be fully established.
Several species have also been
introduced to cryostorage.

Cryostorage — a new era in
ex situ plant conservation
The cryogenic storage facility at
the Australian PlantBank was fully
commissioned in early 2014, offering
a new era in plant conservation.
Plant parts — such as seeds, buds
and shoots — can be stored in the
cryostorage tanks in liquid nitrogen
at temperatures of lower than -180°C.

This extremely long-term storage
method is now being routinely used
around the world for storage of
agricultural species and also many
types of mammalian tissue. We
are adapting these methods and
researching new ones as each species
or tissue type requires its own storage
method. We will be conducting this
research over the coming years and
refining it to suit as many of our
native plant species as possible. It is
envisaged that as this technology is
adapted to Australian plant species,
it may ensure the future of all storage
of our rare and fragile germplasm,
including seeds and perhaps the
fungal partners of rare terrestrial
orchids.

Documenting Biodiversity
New species are discovered every
year by our scientists. Dr Richard
Jobson and PhD student Paulo
Baleeiro travelled to the Dampier
Peninsula, Western Australia via the
Gulf of Carpentaria, Darwin, and the
Kimberley, collecting for a study on
evolution in Australian Utricularia
(bladderworts). One of the goals of
the trip was to collect DNA material
of the rare U. kenneallyi, known
only by the type collection made
in 1986. New populations were
discovered providing vital data for its
conservation. On this trip four other
undescribed species were collected,
some for the first time, including U.
sp. ‘Theda Station’. Other field work
included an expedition to Cape
York Peninsula (Qld) by Dr Trevor
Wilson and Dr Matt Renner who
targeted undescribed species such
as Hemigenia sp. ‘White Mountains’
(Lamiaceae) and conducted
detailed liverwort surveys in remote
areas. Both came back with many
collections for the NSW Herbarium
that included undescribed species,
new records for Australia and material

for morphological and molecular
research. Dr Yola Metti working on
the phylogeny of a red algae group,
the Laurencia complex (Rhodophyta,
Rhodomelaceae) has identified an
undescribed species that belongs
to an undescribed genus she will be
publishing soon.

Understanding Disease
Myrtle rust
The plant disease Myrtle rust is an
alarming threat to members of the
Myrtaceae (including eucalypts)
and their associated ecosystems
in Australia. The disease is caused
by a fungus Puccinia psidii that
resembles in many ways the rusts that
infect cereals causing devastating
crop losses worldwide. However,
its true relationship with other rust
fungi is ambiguous, casting doubt
as to its proper name and, hence
its biological affiliations and how it
would be expected to behave. In
collaboration with an international
team of scientists (including
Dr Wolfgang Maier, from Germany;
Prof Mike Wingfield, from South
Africa), our team investigated the
taxonomy of this fungus. The study

has clearly shown that the name
P. psidii is incorrect and the team
is now working towards creating a
new genus that better reflects its
taxonomy. This will lead to more
efficient disease management in
terms of diagnostics, quarantine
and being able to better predict the
ecology and spread of the pathogen.
Phytophthora dieback — novel
method of detection
Despite the incredibly devastating
impact Phytophthora dieback can
have on our native ecosystems, the
disease is often not recognised until
well after establishment, when the
best opportunity for effective disease
management has passed. Remotelysensed information such as satellite
imagery has in recent years been
used to assess plant health, including
disease presence, in both agricultural
and natural systems over wide areas.
This approach to disease detection
was trialled, in collaboration with
the University of Sydney, to assess if
Hyperspectral Remote Sensing (HRS)
can be used to identify Phytophthora
dieback in native plants.

| Dr Cathy Offord examining Wollemi nobilis at the Australian PlantBank
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HRS generates detailed information
on light reflectance, including regions
beyond the visible spectrum. Using
this technology, light reflected off
plants infected with Phytophthora
cinnamomi was assessed over four
months in a greenhouse. Although
not all of the tested host species
responded in the same way, we
found that species more susceptible
to disease in some instances, such
as Banksia serrata, showed greater
changes, some of which were presymptomatic.
These preliminary results indicate
that HRS could potentially be applied
to help guide an initial disease
investigation from hyperspectral
satellite imagery without even leaving
the office. Additionally, this technique
could assist in monitoring the
progress and spread in areas in which
P. cinnamomi is known to occur.

Key Performance Indicators

2013–14 2012–13 2011–12 2010–11

Peer reviewed scientific
publications, general articles and
presentations

109

149

162

122

Species described or reassessed

65

60

20

47

Grant-funded research projects

21

27

16

21

Accessions of NSW threatened
species in the Seedbank

590

522

502

446

Acquisitions to the Herbarium

7768

7708

1887

4230

Herbarium specimens databased

9860

8326

7987

7964

Cockatoo wing tags
Research into the behaviour,
movements and population size
of the Sulphur-crested Cockatoo
(Cacatua galerita) is being conducted
in conjunction with the University of
Sydney and the Australian Museum.
Study birds have been wing-tagged
to allow individual identification and

members of the community have
been encouraged to report their
sightings of tagged birds. To date
100 cockatoos have been tagged in
the Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
and more than 10,000 re-sightings
have been reported from within
the Garden and across the Sydney
region (from Dee Why to Engadine).
This large number of re-sightings
has been aided by the ‘wing tags’
app which facilitates easy reporting.
To date, the data presents a bias
for urban foraging. To verify this
behaviour the next step of the project
involves GPS tracking to quantify
birds’ movements and habitat
preferences without relying on
human observations.

Research Grants
The following lists external grant
monies funded to the Trust for special
research projects:
Arcadia
Dr Cathy Offord, Dr Peter Cuneo
Rainforest Seed Conservation Project.
$132,523 (second year of a five-year
US$600,000 grant).

| Dr Trevor Wilson and Dr Natalie Nagalingum in the field

16

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

Australian Biological Resources
Study (ABRS)
Dr Alan Millar and Dr Yola Metti
The morphological and molecular
phylogeny of the Laurencia complex
(Rhodophyta, Rhodomelaceae) for

Australia. $70,000 (second year of a
four-year $210,000 grant).

(third year of a three-year $9000 grant).

Dr Richard Jobson
Diversification and species limits
within the Australian Uticularia L.
(Lentibulariaceae). $10,000 (second
year of three-year $30,000 grant).

NSW Environmental Trust
Dr Peter Cuneo
Develop native grass seed production
area at Australian PlantBank to
provide seed for restoration. $66,038
(first year of a two-year $99,453 grant).

Dr Matthew Renner
A molecular and morphological
investigation of species limits
in Australian Plagiochilaceae
(Jungermanniopsida). $90,000 (first
year of a three-year $270,000 grant).

NSW National Parks Foundation/
Australian Seed Bank Partnership
Dr Peter Cuneo
Threatened species susceptible to
Myrtle rust — Sydney Region. $7485
(one year only).

Dr Trevor Wilson, Dr Barry Conn
and Dr Murray Henwood
Systematics of the Prsthantheroideae
(Lamiaceae). $ 90,000 (second year of
a three-year $270,000 grant).

Office of Environment and Heritage
— North West Region (OEH)
Dr Karen Sommerville and Dr Cathy
Offord
Ex situ conservation of threatened
orchids. $7704 (third year of a threeyear $45,000 grant).

Australian Flora Foundation
Dr Nathalie Nagalingum
Conservation genetics of wild
populations and botanic garden
collections of Australian cycads. $11,042
(first year of a two-year $23,769 grant).
Bjarne K Dahl Trust/Australian Seed
Bank Partnership
Dr Peter Cuneo
Threatened species eucalypt seed
collections — ex situ conservation.
$18,000 (one year only).
Endeavour Energy
Dr Peter Cuneo
African olive control program.
$76,920.

Palm and Cycad Society of Australia
Dr Nathalie Nagalingum
Cycads in the Northern Territory.
$9920 (one year project).
Plant Health Australia and
Department of Agriculture
Fisheries and Forestry (DAFF)
Dr Edward Liew, Dr Marlien van
der Merwe
Phylogenetic position of the Puccinia
psidii sensu lato complex in the
Pucciniales. $16,000 (final year of a
$60,000 three-year grant — extended
6 months).
Roads and Maritime Services (RMS)
Dr Edward Liew, Dr Karen
Sommerville, Dr Cathy Offord,
Dr Peter Cuneo
Angus Onion Orchid (Microtis
angusii) research. $121,250 (first year
of a $242,500 two-year grant).

Hermon Slade Foundation
Dr Marco Duretto, Dr Michael Bayly
(University of Melbourne)
A molecular and morphological
phylogeny of the Phebalium Group
(Rutaceae): resolving the status
and relationships of taxa of high
conservation value. $27,000 (first year
of a three-year $81,000 project).

Collaborative Grants awarded to
other agencies

Horticulture Australia
Dr Edward Liew
Characterisation and management
of Fusarium wilt of watermelon. $3000

Australian Research Council (ARC)
— Discovery
Dr Tianhua He, (Curtin University),
Prof. Byron Lamont (Curtin

University), Dr Peter Weston, Prof.
Richard Cowling (Curtin University)
Origin and evolution of plant
functional traits in relation to fire.
$100,000 (third year of a three-year
$310,000 grant).
Dr Gregory Jordan, A/Prof
Renee Vaillancourt (University of
Tasmania), Dr Maurizio Rossetto
Mobility, stasis or extinction? The
response of plants to long-term
environmental change. $95,000
(second year of a three-year $285,000
grant).
Australian Research Council (ARC)
— Linkage
Dr Andrew Lowe (University of
Adelaide), Dr Brett Summerell,
Dr Maurizio Rossetto
Species and gene turnover
across environmental gradients a
landscape level approach to quantify
biodiversity and resilience for climate
adaptation. $17,021 (second year of a
three-year $420,000 grant).
The Fenner School of Environment
and Society (ANU)
Dr Maurizio Rossetto, Prof. David
Keith (University of New South
Wales)
Maintaining long-term resilience in
isolated peat swamp flora: exploring
the significance of population
variation and connectivity using
genetic and ecological evidence
across a range of scales. $43,602
(second year of the three-year
$250,000 grant).
National Environment Research
Program
Prof. Darren Crayn (James Cook
University), Dr Maurizio Rossetto
Identifying rainforest refugia and
hotspots of plant genetic diversity
in the Wet Tropics and Cape York
Peninsula. (first and second year of a
three-year $320,000 grant).
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Horticultural and Asset
Management

1 | The Spring Walk horticultural team 2 | Horticultural Team Arborist Peter Butler conducting a review of Palm Grove tree health at
the Royal Botanic Garden 3 | Bushfires threatening the Blue Mountains Botanic Garden in October 2013 (Photo: Greg Bourke)
4 | Magnolia grandiflora

Our Infrastructure
The Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
— at almost 200 years old — is
the oldest cultural and scientific
organisation in Australia.
The variety of landscapes across
the Trust’s four sites, the combined
catalogue of more than 3000 assets
and the advanced age of the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney present
considerable challenges in terms of
asset maintenance and upgrades.

Heritage Management
Our heritage program provides
for ongoing conservation and
preservation of the Trust’s suite of
heritage buildings on the Sydney sites.
A major achievement in the area of
asset protection was the completion
of the restoration of 160 metres of
the historic Farm Cove Sea Wall at
a cost of $8,600,000. Instability of
the foundation stones had caused
the eastern side to slump and the
western side to lean into Farm Cove.
Works required dismantling and
numbering of stone wall blocks to
ensure they were put back correctly.
New concrete footings were
constructed before rebuilding the
wall and placing the blocks back into
their original position.
The Trust also restored 400 metres
of the historic sandstone and iron
palisade fence of the Royal Botanic
Garden, Sydney in the second of
a four-year funding allocation. The
works were conducted in conjunction
with the Minister’s Stone Program
administered through Public Works
during a major restoration of the
Woolloomooloo Gates.

CAPITAL WORKS 2013 –14

Expenditure ($,000)

Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
Sydney Tropical Centre Refurbishment
Farm Cove Sea Wall Restoration
Parking Meters
People Counting System
Digital 2 Way Radio System
Domain Tipper Truck
Brown Building Rectification
Slate Roof Replacement
New Irrigation Install
Volunteer Guide Atrium-Design
Domain Branding
Connected Classroom Hardware — HSBC
DNA Equipment
Minor works (totalling)

536
6,699
124
91
70
82
142
20
24
22
41
32
55
32

The Australian Botanic Garden, Mount Anann
PlantBank
Visitor Amenities
ABG Connection Garden
Plant Bank Pathway Link
Bin Enclosures
Minor works (totalling)

1,051
389
197
138
41
32

The Blue Mountains Botanic Garden, Mount Tomah
Plant & Equipment Replacement
Tractor & Trailer
Minor works (totalling)
ICT Infrastructure
Total
,• External brick and painting work —
Cottages 5 & 6
• External restoration of Cryptogram
House
• External painting and flagpole
replacement on the Cunningham
Building

Other works on heritage infrastructure
completed this year included:

New Building and Maintenance

• External timber work and painting
— Central Depot heritage
buildings

Redevelopment of the Sydney
Tropical Centre has been in planning
for some time. The pyramid structure

76
75
24
170
10,162
is at the end of its useful life and
has limited display space. It has no
public amenities, difficult access and
is financially and environmentally
expensive to operate. A review of
the first draft concept identified
major functional and constructional
constraints imposed by retaining
the existing building structures. It
also presented significant cost and
project delivery time implications.
A thorough analysis undertaken
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by the design team recommended
retention of the Arc and demolition
of the Foyer and Pyramid. The Biome
Project, as it has been called, will
undertake significant refurbishment
of the Arc for seasonally rotating,
high-impact horticultural displays. It
will be supplemented by a purposebuilt adjoining facility to replace the
Pyramid and existing Foyer Space.
This will accommodate a second,
extended horticultural display space,
regular hospitality events and cultural
exhibitions, along with appropriate
foyer-reception and amenities spaces
to support these functions.
The Trust also completed a major
milestone with the launch of the
dual award-winning building, the
Australian PlantBank for our science
and conservation work at a cost of
nearly $20,000,000 which was raised
from a large number of sources.
Further detail about the project
can be found in the ‘Science and
Conservation’ section.
Other works included:

and investigators. The CCTV
network complies with the NSW
Government CCTV Policy.

Managing our Living
Collection

addition, the Garden dam was used
for RFS tankers and water bombing.
Due to good management and
good luck both people and plants
were unharmed.

Our living collection is a constant
source of wonder and at times,
confrontation, with wildfire one of our
more serious tests. In October 2013
the State Mine Fire was reported at
the army range at Marrangaroo west
of Lithgow. It spread east and the Rural
Fire Service (RFS) closed sections of the
Bells Line of Road, the entry to the Blue
Mountains Botanic Garden. Staff living
in the Katoomba/Blackheath areas
vacated the site to avoid being cut off
from their homes and families.

Growth and Nurture

Based on RFS forecasts and road
closures, the Garden was closed
to visitors but staff living nearby
remained on site to assist with its
protection. The Garden’s Critical
Incident Plan for bushfires was
activated, and the site became a
refuge centre for locals and a last
point of safety for the RFS. In

In preparation for the Tropical Centre’s
transformation into the Biome, our
Sydney-based plant nursery staff have
been moving, transplanting and
dividing more than 340 plants from the
Centre to garden beds and the nursery.
In total, there were more than 430
propagation and re-propagation
attempts.

An in-ground nursery has been
established on the Sunrise Property at
the Blue Mountains Botanic Garden
and more than 350 Podocarpus
macrophyllus ‘Maki’ have been
planted. A new watering system has
been installed which includes the ability
to fertilise these plants directly through
the irrigation line. Once mature
enough, these specimens will form a
replacement hedge following the
removal of the weedy cherry laurel.

• As part of the roads and pathways
program, approximately three
kilometres of paths and roadways
were re-surfaced or repaired to
improve visitor comfort and safety
• Upgrading of the Sydney site
security measures with the
installation of three additional
CCTV cameras — boosting
the network to 29 surveillance
cameras. These measures have
been invaluable in assisting in
the protection of the Trust’s
assets, visitor safety and crowd
management during events. The
CCTV surveillance enhancements
have resulted in a decline in
reported incidents of malicious
damage, a significant drop in
the number of motor vehicle
break-ins and the provision of
more valuable evidence to police
20
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| Horticultural Research Assistant Amanda Rollason collecting plant specimens for
the Australian PlantBank

Apprenticeships started
Total

2013–14

2012–13

2011–12

5

11

5

5

7

7

Apprenticeships completed
Total

As part of our horticultural work, not
only do we nurture plants in our
nurseries, but also the future skills of
horticulturalists through our apprentice
program across all three sites.
At the Australian Botanic Garden,
enhancements to established
gardens continue with the redevelopment of perennial beds,
lawns and pathways in front of the
Visitor Centre. This project marks the
final stage of the Connections Garden
development project. Significant
plantings where also added to the
Plants for People exhibit, providing
for an enriched experience for visitors
to the new AGL Lakeside Pavilion.
The PlantBank landscape
development at The Australian
Botanic Garden, Mount Annan
comprised the largest single
project planting since the Garden’s
establishment — with more than
20,000 trees, shrubs and herbaceous
Cumberland Plain Woodland plants
provided for the development.
Tree and vegetation management
remain key priorities. At the Australian
Botanic Garden, in preparation for a
landscape completely cleared of the
exotic African olive, a biodiversity
management plan has been drafted
and strategies are being developed
to allocate vegetation management
zones for broad-scale land
rehabilitation.
At the Royal Botanic Garden,
Sydney our heritage buildings age
with time along with our trees. This
year we removed 78 trees due to
senescence, disease, and safety
concerns or poor vigour. The Sydney
site features approximately 3580 trees
and is unable to host many more
due to space limitations. However,
replacements are guided by the
themes of various beds and areas.

The historic palm collection
— comprising the area
currently regenerating after the
implementation of the flying fox
relocation program, the Lower
Garden palm groves and the
Subtropical Walk — is being
restored. The vast majority of
plants have been donated by our
benefactor Colin Wilson. The palm
stocktaking and labelling project in
the Garden produced 360 labels this
financial year:
Year

Taxa

Number

2011–2012

83

166

2012–2013

73

171

2013–2014

83

159

At the Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden, Mount Tomah we planted
almost 200 Wollemi pines (Wollemia
nobilis) within the 200 hectare natural
area in 2012. The planting now forms
the key component of university
research which is being supervised
and assisted by Botanic Gardens
staff. It aims to promote conservation
and future regeneration of Wollemi
pines through manipulation of
microbial communities. The research
will fill important knowledge gaps
and lead to guidelines that enhance
translocation outcomes — a critical
next step identified by the Wollemi
pine recovery plan.
The total numbers of plants, including
trees installed across the Gardens:
Blue Mountains Botanic Garden
1039
Royal Botanic Garden and Domain
6898
Australian Botanic Garden*
22,111

landscape and 800 for the Plants for
People in the Connection Garden

Fields, Lawns and Grasses
We invite visitors to walk, exercise,
picnic and relax on our many different
varieties of grasses that are an
important part of our living collection.
Some grass areas, however, became
‘over-loved’, with more than 15,500
square metres of turf requiring
restoration in order to maintain the
nine Domain sports fields in a safe
condition. These areas are extremely
popular with lunchtime and after-work
sports teams and wear out by the end
of each season.
In summer the Philip Precinct and
Fleet Steps areas of the Domain are
impacted by the exciting and worldrenowned event program that attracts
nearly 500,000 local, interstate and
international visitors. The cost of
reparation is fully paid for by the
event producers.

Weed and Risk Assessment
Procedure (WRAP)
A principle of good horticulture is not
to spread unwanted plants which are
commonly called ‘weeds’. Regular
checks are performed across our
Gardens before plants are added
to the living collection, including an
assessment for weed potential. Older
specimens planted in years past
which are now regarded as weeds
are monitored by staff who remove
flowers before seed sets to ensure
they don’t spread outside
the Gardens.
Year

WRAPs

2011–2012

624

2012–2013

918

2013–2014

807

* Includes 15,899 for PlantBank
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Sustaining the Environment

1 | The Australian PlantBank

2, 3, 4 | Sustainable practices using water and fresh air to cool the building

The Trust operates as part of the
Office of Environment and Heritage
and is committed to working within
a sustainability framework including
through the reduction of waste and
increased resource recovery. Several
areas take precedence.

Chemicals Management
The Trust does not use pesticides
containing neonicotinoids as these
chemicals have been linked to the
death of bees and their hives. Bees
are necessary for the pollination of
native flowering trees in addition
to exotic flowers and vegetables.
Pollination of approximately one third
of the plants we eat and, of course,
the production of honey relies on a
healthy bee population.
At the Australian Botanic Garden
we safely disposed of over 500 kg of
outdated chemicals that had been
superseded by newer and lesshazardous compounds.

Water Management
Our Pond Dosing Program has vastly
improved the quality of tidal ponds
in the Royal Botanic Garden. Based
on the previous success of the twin
ponds treatment trial, Oceanic Bio
expanded their sponsorship using
the company’s water treatment
product Eco Tabs Treatment across
the Main, Twin and Cunningham
ponds. The treatment has resulted
in water quality improvement and
the elimination of odours, surface
scum and algal blooms, in addition to
improved turbidity — all contributing
to a healthier environment for water
plants, birds and animals.
While the Sydney site relies heavily on
potable water for the vast majority of
its needs, the Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden is completely self-sufficient
in terms of both water collection and
usage. Water for irrigation and toilet
flushing is sourced from the onsite dam

WATER

2012-13

2013-14

+/-

%

Potable

35,721 kl

34,177 kl

1544 kl

-4.5%

which collects rainwater and run-off. All
potable water is harvested from roof
tops.
Two new buildings — the AGL
Pavilion and the Australian Plantbank
— at the Australian Botanic Garden
have provided opportunities for
rainwater water harvesting, with the
water being used within the building
amenities. As a result, potable water
use was considerably lower this year.

Energy Management
The bulk of the Trusts’ electricity
usage is bought under the State
Contract Control Board electricity
contract number 777 which minimises
cost and allows purchase of green
power generated from renewable
sources. In the previous reporting
year price increases caused an energy
cost rise of 20 per cent. This year we
have slowed the increase to 12.5 per
cent — a significant improvement.
Energy use at the Mount Annan
site has risen due to construction of
the Australian PlantBank which has
significantly increased the overall
building footprint at the Garden by
close to 100 per cent.
Power usage, however, has only
increased by 51.6 per cent, which
suggests that the Australian
PlantBank is running 48.4 per cent
more efficiently than the existing
building infrastructure, although
electricity use has been somewhat
offset by the use of natural gas as
an energy source. The extension
ENERGY
Natural Gas
Electricity

of the construction period for the
Australian PlantBank would have also
contributed to the Garden’s power
usage during the 2013 –14 year so we
look towards the next reporting year
for more reliable base-line data in
relation to power consumption.
A newly installed 11.37 kw solar
panel system on the Visitors Centre
Roof at the Mount Tomah site is
currently producing 20 – 30 per cent
of the power required to run the
Visitor Centre.
The Sydney site, despite its older
infrastructure, continues to yield
energy efficiency improvements
wherever possible. The new Biome
Project for the Sydney Tropical
Centre, for example, will incorporate
high energy-efficiency targets. The
Trust also supplies 100 per cent
‘green power’ to public event clients
who, in the course of hiring a site,
typically use and pay for more than
$50,000 worth of power across the
expansive Domain precinct per year.

Waste Management
Waste management at our three
Botanic Gardens is managed in
varying ways according to need and
the waste management services
available, and is implemented
with the aim of reducing waste
and recycling or reusing as many
resources as possible.
The Trust’s integration with Centennial
Parklands means that the two
organisations have begun the process

2012–13

2013–14

+/-

-

8492

–

62,5712 kw

94,8713 kw

32,3001 kw
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of examining how the Government
Resources Efficiency Policy can
further enhance our procurement and
resource efficiencies.
At the Blue Mountains Botanic Garden
waste is sorted and either re-used on
site as in the case of green waste, or
delivered as separate waste streams to
the council depot. Previously unused
areas of the site are being remediated
and cleaned which accounts for an
increase in general waste by 1.28 T.
At the Australian Botanic Garden more
than 8.5 T of paper and cardboard
were recycled.
Of the total 6823 cubic metres of
waste collected on the Sydney site
by our waste managers Watts Waste
Pty Ltd, more than 13 per cent was
separated into co-mingled recycling
at source. The remainder was taken
to a materials recovery centre where
a further 75.5 per cent was separated
for recycling, resulting in 88.7 per
cent of total waste being recycled.
The remaining 11.3 per cent was sent
to a landfill where up to 87 per cent
of the methane gas generated off
the site was captured and used to
generate electricity that is fed into
the electricity grid.

Palm Grove at the Royal Botanic
Garden following the dispersal
beginning June 2012. A combination
of non-harmful measures such as predawn noise and light deterrents were
conducted on 188 mornings during
2013–2014. Flying-fox were observed
to roost on 33 occasions, 13 of which
involved less than 10 individuals.
This occurrence highlights that
grey-headed flying fox may attempt
to resume roosting within the Royal
Botanic Garden at any point in the
future and we need to be vigilant in
order to protect this historic grove.
Since 2007 the Trust has participated
in Australian white ibis research. In
2007 and 2008 a sample of adult ibis
were individually colour-banded to
assess their site-loyalty and foraging
movements. Individuals from these
cohorts have been routinely observed
within the Garden during our monthly
surveys conducted over the last seven
years and are being tracked using

Green waste was sent off site for
mulching and composting then
brought back for use on gardens and
tree pits to reduce the amount of
watering needed for plant health.

Wildlife Management
In addition to researching behaviour,
movements and population size of
the sulphur-crested cockatoo (noted
in our science report), we have
continued our work with flying foxes.
We have been deterring the
population from re-establishing a
roosting colony within the historic
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| Sulphur-crested Cockatoo with wing tag

GPS transmitters. Complementing
this work, the Trust coordinates the
annual state-wide community survey
of the ibis population. This work is
conducted in collaboration with OEH
(NPWS) and the Australian Museum.

Pollination Facilitation
Our focus on bee health has lead
to an exciting new partnership with
Urban Beehive. During the year
the Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
has welcomed the installation of
six hives, each with 60,000 – 80,000
bees. The boosted bee population
throughout the Garden not only
contributes significantly to the health
of our living collection but delivers a
harvest of high-quality honey. Some
340 kilograms of pure untreated
honey was harvested during the
program’s first year of operation and
the commercial side-line has been
extremely successful with the honey
now a best seller at the Garden’s
Visitor Centre and shop.

Community Engagement

1 | Aboriginal Education Officers Clarence Slockee and Brendan Moore leading school holiday activities 2 | Children’s activities at
Dandy Lions 3 | Autumn Vibes 2013 showcasing international music, food and activities for the whole family

Connecting with the
community
At almost 200 years of age, the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney is Australia’s
oldest botanic garden and scientific
institution. During the last two years
— without losing sight of the site’s
fundamental heritage value — the
Trust has wholeheartedly embraced
social media and new technologies
in order to better connect with the
community.
In the last year, an online visitor
survey translated into four languages
was launched across the Trust’s
three Gardens. The survey proved
to be an effective tool from which to
gauge the changing needs of visitors
and thereby improve our services,
communications and infrastructure.
Similarly, strategies have been
employed to boost the numbers of
people engaging online through
Facebook, Twitter, YouTube,
Instagram and Flickr. The monthly
‘Your Gardens’ e-news is now
being received by nearly 20,000
subscribers while the website attracts
approximately 870,000 visits annually.
More traditional written and verbal
communications are still extremely
important in gathering insights
into the public’s expectations. We
received written correspondence on
issues as diverse as the draft Royal
Botanic Garden and Domain Master
Plan, to the inspiration gained by
a visitor on a tour of the recentlyopened Australian PlantBank.
A Communications Toolkit was also
launched this year to help staff and
volunteers share knowledge of the
Botanic Gardens in a compelling,
engaging and lively way. At the heart
of the Toolkit is the internal aim of
‘Inspiring Plant Conservationists’
through whatever tasks are
undertaken — from presentations
26
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by world-leading plant scientists,
to customer enquiries through the
Garden Shop.
Regardless of the form of
communication, engaging with the
community is an ongoing priority
for the organisation and an essential
component in guiding the Trust’s
science, horticulture and visitor
experience.

Education
Education is a core element of the
Trust’s work as described in the
mission statement:
‘As a living organisation, we
connect people with plants through
imaginative horticulture, beautiful
landscapes, transformative learning
experiences and cultural events.’
2014 marks 40 years of education
at the Trust. During this milestone
year, community and education
staff engaged a record 44,747
people in innovative programs
focusing on plants, their science and
conservation, and the vital role they
play in our lives.
A review of the new Australian
school curriculum is currently being
conducted in order to develop
a variety of complementary niche
lessons for school groups. Such
a program will further enhance the
Trust’s role as a relevant educator and
assist in the increase of visitations by
school groups.
In 2013 –14 our programs delivered:
• classes to more than 18,000
school students, including Year 11
‘Evolution of Australian Biota Study
Days’ in partnership with Taronga
Zoo and the Australian Museum
• the Dandy Lions preschool
program attracting 4415
participants and assisting in the
forging of an ongoing relationship

with the Gardens
• an enriched portfolio of school
holiday activities and fun selfguided trails
• the launch of the HSBC sponsored
‘Connected Classroom’ at the
Australian PlantBank — connecting
with schools across NSW
and offering the potential for
international connection in the future
• the first ‘app’ for the Trust —
the Australian PlantBank selfguided trail
• National Science Week joint
programs delivered with
Taronga Zoo
• live video-conferenced lessons.
Importantly — and with the generous
support of corporate partner HSBC
— the Trust’s ‘Interactive Learning
Project’ school excursion program is
keeping pace with the global online
learning revolution and expanding
our reach. In addition, hands-on
learning opportunities in Aboriginal
culture and site interpretation were
again popular with school groups and
overseas tourists.
In addition:
• the Aboriginal education team
delivered programs to more than
4000 participants
• the Trust’s vital role as an educator
was represented in wider state
networks, planning bodies and
tourism organisations, affirming the
Trust’s position as a leader in the
field of education
• the Trust’s Aboriginal educators
featured in filming for Tourism
Australia and Destination NSW, in
addition to filming and interviews
conducted by a wide range of
overseas-based travel media
and tourism promotion groups
including a top-rating US breakfast

Community & Education Programs Statistics
Program

2013–14

2012–13

18,064

18,069

Community Programs participants

9982

7514

Aboriginal Education participants

4023

4650

Community Greening participants

4228

4572

Youth Community Greening participants

8450

3361

(no program in
2013–14 FY)

6300

44,747

44,466

School Program participants

Artist-in-Residence Exhibition attendance
TOTAL
Interactive Learning Project Year 1

2013–14

Video-conferenced lesson participation

633

App downloads

1262

PlantBank education microsite visits

999

TOTAL

2894

(NB: these statistics are included in the main table total of 44,747)
television show, Indian National
Geographic television and Chinese
bloggers with an audience of one
million people
• the Trust’s tourism education product
was marketed at the Australian
Tourism Exchange in Cairns

Our Visitor Programs
Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
Corroboree Sydney
The Royal Botanic Garden was a
collaborating partner for the inaugural
Corroboree Sydney Indigenous
cultural festival, along with the Art
Gallery of NSW, Australian Museum,
Bangarra Dance Theatre, Blackfella
Films, Koori Radio 93.7FM, the
Museum of Contemporary Art
Australia, State Library of NSW and
the Sydney Opera House.
Tomato Festival Sydney
The inaugural Tomato Festival Sydney
attracted thousands of new visitors
to the Sydney Garden. The festival

partnered with Grow it Local and
Trolley’d Cocktails, and attracted
some of Sydney’s top chefs in addition
to eminent food and garden writers. In
addition, Ozharvest was able to make
use of the leftover produce.
The Festival resulted in some
impressive statistics:
• a media coverage reach of over
seven million people (valued at
more than $600,000 when based on
the equivalent advertising rates for
the same column centimetres)

the community. The Autumn in Your
Gardens festival targeted domestic
and international visitors, with a busy
program of art workshops, opera,
guided walks, exhibitions and the
multicultural Autumn Vibes celebration,
in addition to the AnnanROMA and
TomahROMA food and wine festivals.
All attractions were conducted
against a backdrop showcasing the
extraordinary beauty of the Gardens.
TomahROMA also launched the
inaugural Blue Mountains Autumn
Sustainable Food Festival.
Autumn Vibes
This multicultural festival celebrated
the Trust’s plant collection — from
Africa and Asia, in addition to
Australia’s own native plants —
through a varied program of music,
dance and art including African
drumming workshops, along with
themed volunteer guided walks
linking to the Garden’s African
plant collection.
Autumn Vibe’s generated:
• approximately 17,000 visitors to
the Garden
• media coverage reaching more
than three million people and worth
(in equivalent advertising dollars)
more than $250,000 — a 74 per
cent increase over the $149,000
raised by the same event during
the previous reporting period.

• a strong new partnership forged
with the Diggers Club.

Blue Mountains Botanic Garden,
Mount Tomah
World Heritage Exhibition Centre
The World Heritage Exhibition
Centre at the Blue Mountains
Botanic Garden gained funding
for improvements and the creation
of new interpretation focussing on
the history of the northern Blue
Mountains or ‘The Botanists Way’.

Autumn in Your Gardens
All three Gardens showcased the
Trust as a cultural organisation with a
wide range of offerings to share with

Darug Garden Trail
A new audio tour has been
developed for visitors to take a
self-guided walk through a recently-

• more than 21,300 visitors to the
Garden over the festival weekend
— an increase of 6000 visitors
compared with the same weekend
in 2013
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launched Aboriginal trail called
‘Yenmara Bembulra Darug’ (‘Walk on
our Earth’) featuring local Aboriginal
uses for plants that can be viewed
along the trail.
Garden Shuttle
The Trust has conducted a one-year
trial of a paid Garden Shuttle Tour
(free for disability card holders) and
the tour has generated an impressive
$20,000 for the Gardens in the past
financial year.
Garden Grooves
For this year’s Garden Grooves we
booked Kate Miller-Heidke and the
event sold out for the first time.
Back to Back International Wool
Challenge
This fundraising event raised $17,000
with proceeds going to the Cancer
Council for prostate cancer research.
Social Media and Digital
This year saw the Facebook

page exceed the 3000 ‘likes’
milestone — an increase of 86 per
cent over the reporting year. In
addition, website sessions on www.
mounttomahbotanicgarden.com.
au increased by 15 per cent, with an
additional 10,000 visits with a total
of 80,727 over the year.
The Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan
The Australian Botanic Garden
celebrated a number of milestone
events including the official opening
of the Australian PlantBank by
Her Excellency Professor The
Honourable Dame Marie Bashir
AD CVO, Governor of New South
Wales; the official opening of the
AGL Lakeside Pavilion; and the
Garden’s 25th anniversary, which
was recognised with an exhibition,
a themed tour encompassing the
Garden’s history and development,
and a special function for staff who

Visits to:

2013–14

2012–13

2011–12

Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney

3,977,031

3,990,834

3,544,344

Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan

331,032

316,743

325,251

Blue Mountains Botanic Garden,
Mount Tomah

158,512

177,342

128,645

People using Domain for booked
sports activities

85,127

62,910

59,330

Attendees at public events:			
Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney

411,104

433,380

Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan

22,209

24,000

23,495

Blue Mountains Botanic Garden,
Mount Tomah

97,123

130,316

65,501

1 | AnnanRoma 2013

Total event and venue bookings:

2 | Bangarra Dance Theatre at Corroboree
Week

Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney

2172

1559

1076

Visitors satisfied with facilities,
services and programs (%)

93%

92%

97%

3 | Dr Trevor Wilson and other staff raised
funds for the Save a Species Walk
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have been employed at the Garden
since it opened.
Record visitation
In the year that celebrated the 25th
anniversary of the Australian Botanic
Garden, we reported record visitation
for the financial year with 331,032
visitors — an increase of 4.5 per cent
over the 2012–13 financial year.
Events program
More than 22,000 visitors enjoyed
a comprehensive and diverse
program of events including the
AnnanROMA Food and Wine festival,
the Campbelltown City Challenge
Walk healthy lifestyle initiative,
Carols in the Garden, mountain bike
competition events, the Girl Guides
Adventure in the Garden day, Cinema
under the Stars and a paid Australian
PlantBank behind-the-scenes tour.

Volunteering
The Trust and Foundation and
Friends volunteers actively contribute
to enhancing visitor experiences,
assist in conservation and
environmental projects, and conduct
income-generating programs.

• 25,000 visitors were assisted by
volunteers at information booths

Quick Fact: Volunteers
worked 48,672 hours,
equating to over a million
dollars in value — an
increase of 12% from
previous year.
• Volunteer guides showcased the
Gardens to 7077 visitors with a
combination of paid and free
guided tours, and the Climate
Watch Trail was showcased to
HRH Princess Laurentien of the
Netherlands during her visit
• Herbarium volunteers mounted
7768 plant specimens including
marine algae and also datachecked 1506 specimen records
• Special projects volunteers assisted
staff with field work, research projects
and the Public Reference Collection
• Plant pathology volunteers assisted
scientists with the processing of
soil samples including significant
samples from NSW National Parks
for the presence of Phytophthora

Volunteers attended and contributed
to events hosted by the Sydney
Cultural Organisations Volunteer
Network Group during National
Volunteers Week in May.

• Library volunteers continued
to archive and digitise the
Garden’s vast historic collection
of photographs and special
collections

During the reporting period:

• Begonia specialist volunteers
maintained the world’s largest
outdoor collection of begonia

• 668 volunteers across the Trust
and Foundation and Friends of the
Botanic Gardens contributed to
42 programs
• the annual ‘thank you’ to volunteers
held in December at the Australian
PlantBank included special
recognition to volunteers who had
contributed to 10, 15, 20 and 25
years of service
• volunteers contributed 48,672
hours of volunteer work

• Australian PlantBank guides —
an exciting new volunteer guide
program — was established at the
Australian PlantBank, allowing the
facility to now open to the public
on weekends for tours
• Bush regeneration volunteers
(Mount Annan) contributed to the
removal of African olive and the
Wildlife Monitoring Volunteers
banded 316 birds of 32 species

• Corporate volunteers (105) assisted
horticultural staff in the Palm
Grove, Australian Native Rainforest,
Tropical Rainforest, Bed 84,
Australian Rockery and the Flower
Bed Lawn.

Support and community
Community Greening outreach
program
This partnership program run in
conjunction with Housing NSW has
facilitated 261 community horticulture
projects since its inception in 2000.
A strong focus this year on regional
visits strengthened the Trust’s social
role in bringing active horticulture
education to disadvantaged members
of society. This year the program grew
a greater connection to Aboriginal
communities. The program’s positive
benefits include better health,
increased social cohesion and
lower crime rates in impoverished
communities across the state.
Youth Community Greening
Program
Youth Community Greening saw
significant growth this year with 56
new projects launched. Highlights
included working with ‘Youth Off The
Streets’, Juvenile Detention Centres
and special-needs schools. During
the year, YCG took horticulture
out to disadvantaged schools and
young people in challenging life
circumstances across NSW, linking
with the school curriculum to deliver
plant-based learning activities,
teaching Aboriginal plant knowledge
and guiding school produce gardens.
Key achievements for comunity
Greening and Youth Community
Greening:
• the renewal of vital project support
from Housing NSW and the Eden
Foundation
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| Lynne Cusak, Sydney Volunteer Guide with overseas visitors at the Royal Botanic Garden

• greater connection with Aboriginal
groups participating in the
programs
• the continued support of health
promotion teams in south-west
Sydney with the extension of nutrition
awareness education and the
advancement of ‘growing your own’
• support of the ‘202020 Vision’
national campaign to increase
urban green space across Australia
• participated at the 2013 Dubbo
Environmental Education
Conference, the inaugural 202020
Vision horticultural industry Urban
Greening Master Class, and the
Rural Indigenous Garden Network.

Quick Fact: Community
Greening and Youth
Community Greening had
recorded an increase of
almost 60% in participation
levels.
30
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PROGRAM

2013 –14

2012–13

Community Greening participants

4228

4572

Youth Community Greening Participants

8450

3361

12,678

7933

TOTAL

Foundation and Friends of
the Botanic Gardens
Foundation and Friends of the
Botanic Gardens is a not-for-profit
membership-based organisation
which was established to encourage
the use and enjoyment of the Royal
Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust
and to involve the community in the
scientific, educational, horticultural,
cultural and recreational aspects of
the Trust. Foundation and Friends
serves as a link between the Trust and
the community, raising much-needed
funds and championing the important
work of the Trust.
Foundation and Friends highlights for
2013 – 2014:

• nine per cent growth in membership
• hosting more than 95 events and
four exhibitions with a combined
visitation to these events of more
than 10,000 attendees
• awarding scholarships worth
$32,000 to help further the
careers of key Trust staff through
professional development
• establishing new ways for the
community to support the
initiatives of the Trust such as the
successful ‘Save a Species Walk’
• the NSW Centre for Volunteering
presented Foundation and Friends
volunteer Liz Dent with the 2013

NSW Senior Volunteer of the Year
Award in recognition of her 12
years’ of dedicated service, and the
Royal Botanic Garden Information
Booth volunteers were nominated
in the ‘Team’ category for their
important work in assisting visitors
to the Garden
• Growing Friends recorded an
increase of 21 per cent in plant sales
over the previous financial year
• Catering volunteers worked across
114 events, and exhibition and
event volunteers coordinated a
large number of key fundraising
programs
• bestowing $1,900,000 in donations
to the Trust in support of various
campaigns, initiatives and projects.

Development and
Sponsorship
The Rainforest Seeds Conservation
Program is a five-year campaign run
under the auspice of the Seedbank
Partnership with Kew Royal Botanic
Gardens, Kew. The partnership
enables the Trust to play a pivotal
role in the global effort to conserve
25 per cent of the world’s plant
species by 2020.

Quick Fact: The Trust and
Foundation and Friends
reached the target of
$1.4 million towards the
Rainforest Seeds
Conservation Program!
We would like to extend sincere
thanks to all the generous supporters
who have enabled this key research

to be undertaken — in particular,
Arcadia for its generous multi-year
leadership gift. Our special thanks
is also extended to corporate
partners TransGrid and HSBC for
their continuing support of the Trust’s
conservation programs and their
investment in this vital project.
Significant support from HSBC has
also facilitated the Trust’s firstever inter-connected classrooms
education program from the
Australian PlantBank. This program
will be extended to the Sydney
Garden in 2014 –15.

Venue Management
The Trust makes available for hire a
selection of heritage buildings and
many of the outdoor areas across
the three Gardens and Domain.
The spaces are used for a range
of activities including weddings,
team building, picnics, sports, film
and photography shoots. The Trust
also provides access for both free
community and ticketed public
events. The Royal Botanic Garden
and Domain — due to their proximity
to the Sydney CBD — are particularly
popular and received a record of
more than 2000 bookings last year.
A taste of the public events this
year included:
• International Fleet Review hosting
63,000 people for the spectacular
and moving 100th anniversary of
the Australian Navy sailing through
Sydney heads
• Mother’s Day Classic Fun Run
• St George Open Air Cinema

• Handa Opera on the Sydney
Harbour
• Carols in the Domain
• New Year’s Eve celebrations
including three ticket events.
Nearly 550,000 people attend public
events across our three Gardens
and Domain of those, more than
430,000 attended the Sydney site,
contributing to Sydney’s popularity as
a preferred tourism destination.
The Trust is aware that it manages
highly-visible and much-loved
spaces, and leads in encouraging its
client event organisers to engage in
sustainable practices when producing
an event, thereby integrating the
Trust’s environmental objectives
with venue hires. To that end, we
used management of one of our
ticketed events for New Year’s Eve to
showcase sustainable event practices.
‘Harbourlights — New Year’s Eve’ was
rewarded with ‘Best achievement in
Sustainability’ at the November 2013
Australian Event Awards.

‘Harbourlights — New
Year’s Eve’ was rewarded
with Best achievement
in Sustainability’ at the
November 2013 Australian
Event Awards. One patron,
when asked how she was
enjoying the event, said:
‘This is the most amazing
experience ever! I’m a
teacher and I’m going
home to England to tell
them how they do it in
Australia’.
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Financial Performance &
Statements

| New Year’s Eve 2013

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust achieved a net result
of $1.957 million for the year. The
reduction in revenue from the
previous financial year was due
to reduced capital funding, in
addition to the decommissioning
of the Sydney Tropical Centre (and
its revenue-stream) in preparation
for the construction of the Biome
commencing next year.

Total revenues reduced $7.180 million
from the previous financial year,
due to reduced grants and
contributions for the Biome, which
has been delayed.

higher depreciation relating to the
completion of the Plantbank this
financial year.

Total expenses increased $0.171
million. Employee-related expenses
have increased by 1.6 per cent. A
decrease in grants and subsidies paid
by the Trust has been offset by

The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust remains in a strong
financial position moving into
2014 –15.

No Hourglass facilities were used
this year.

Payment Performance
Account Payment Performance
Aged analysis at the end of each quarter *
Quarter

Current (ie within
Less than 30
Between 30
Between 61
due date) days overdue
and 60 days
and 90 days
				overdue

More than
90 days
overdue

All suppliers
September

286,879

54,251

3,522

674

–

December

117,872

192

2,201

–

–

March

134,947

1,773

–

–

–

June

568,849

13,006

–

150

4,641

Dec 2013

Mar 2014

Accounts due or paid within each quarter
Measure

Sep 2013

Jun 2014

All Suppliers				
Number of accounts due for payment

1,725

2,360

2,137

2,084

Number of accounts paid on time

1,704

2,331

2,093

2,059

Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on number of accounts)

99%

99%

98%

99%

Dollar amount of accounts due for payment

7,081,041

7,684,915

6,158,397

6,844,363

Dollar amount of accounts paid on time

7,041,246

7,653,195

6,013,107

6,725,603

99%

99%

98%

98%

Number of payments for interest on overdue accounts

–

–

–

–

Interest paid on overdue accounts

–

–

–

–

Actual percentage of accounts paid on time (based on $)
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Future Financial Plans
The 2014 –15 budget has been put
forward to progress our strategic
goals. These include managing
and interpreting the landscapes
and living collections of plants in
the botanic gardens; maintaining
conservation collections; conserving
and interpreting the Aboriginal
and cultural heritage of the botanic
gardens; and making Trust sites

available for community events,
commercial events, sport and
recreation.
Major activities moving forward
include the development of
the Biome Stage 1 in the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney and the
development of a new customerrelationship database to improve
business efficiency.

$’000

Expenses Excluding Losses
Operating Expenses —
Employee related
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Grants and subsidies
TOTAL EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

500
39,974
8,208
–
48,682

Revenue
Sales of goods and services
Investment revenue
Retained taxes, fees and fines
Grants and contributions
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
Net Result
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At the request of Government
the Trust has been providing an
annual grant of $50,000 to the
Hunter Regional Botanic Gardens
which is a non-government
organisation. It is a contribution
towards the management of a
regional botanic garden.
Grants from non-government
organisations

Financial Budget for 2014–15
Operating Statement

Grants to non-government
organisations

12,512
174
1,200
40,482
423
54,791
–
6,109

Arcadia has provided a restricted
fund grant for the Trust’s rainforest
seed conservation program.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Statement by Members of the Trust

Pursuant to Section 41C(1B) and (1C) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983,
we state that:
a) the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public
Finance and Audit Regulations 2010 (as applicable), the Treasurer’s
Directions, the Directives of the Financial Reporting Code and Australian
Accounting Standards, which include Australian Accounting Interpretations;
b) the statements exhibit a true and fair view of the Trust’s financial position
as at 30 June 2014 and the transactions for the year then ended; and
c) there are no circumstances that would render any particulars included in
the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

Ken Boundy
Trust Chairman

Ian Breedon
Trustee
September 2014
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
									

Statement of Comprehensive Income as at 30 June 2014
		

			
Notes
Actual
Budget
Actual
				
2014
2014
2013
				
$’000
$’000
$’000
Expenses excluding losses					
Operating expenses
		

Employee related

2(a)

25,537

27,057

25,138

		

Other operating expenses

2(b)

12,812

13,332

12,974

2(c)

7,255

8,391

6,728

Depreciation and amortisation

Grants and subsidies
2(d)
362
300
955
				
————
————
————
Total Expenses excluding losses		
45,966
49,080
45,795
				
————
————
————
							
Revenue					
Sale of goods and services
3(a)
12,579
12,377
12,819
Investment revenue
3(b)
206
170
210
Retained taxes, fees and fines

3(c)

1,186

1,300

1,318

Grants and contributions

3(d)

35,007

36,734

42,795

Other revenue
3(e)
				
Total Revenue		
				
Gain / (loss) on disposal
4
				
Net result
18
				
				

1,912

————

50,890

————

(2,967)

789

————

51,370

————

45

928

————

58,070

————

(15)

————

————

————

1,957
————
————

2,335
————
————

12,260
————
————

							
Other comprehensive income					
Items that will not be reclassified to net result					
Net increase / (decrease) in property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus
9
6,176
–
–
				
————
————
————
Total Other Comprehensive Income		
6,176
–
–
————
————
————
				
				
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME		
				
				

————

————

————

8,133
————
————

2,335
————
————

12,260
————
————

[The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements]
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
						

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014			

			
Notes
Actual
Budget
Actual
				
2014
2014
2013
				
$’000
$’000
$’000
ASSETS					
Current Assets					
Cash and cash equivalents
6
7,482
8,901
6,152
Receivables
7
855
1,580
1,335
Inventories
8
166
142
142
				
————
————
————
Total Current Assets		
8,503
10,623
7,629
				
————
————
————
Non Current Assets					
Property, plant and equipment					
		 — Land and building		
266,403
273,740
255,573
		 — Plant and equipment		
5,332
44,805
5,190
		 — Infrastructure systems		
51,416
58,970
52,412
		 — Collection assets		
47,242
–
40,129
		 — WIP		
11,532
–
21,575
				
————
————
————
Total Non-Current Assets
9
381,925
377,515
374,879
				
————
————
————
Total Assets		
390,428
388,138
382,508
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————

LIABILITIES					
Current Liabilities					
Payables
12
2,253
4,637
2,567
Provisions
13
2,739
3,020
2,686
Other		
–
750
–
				
————
————
————
Total Current Liabilities		
4,992
8,407
5,253
				
————
————
————
Non-Current Liabilities					
Provisions
13
85
48
37
				
————
————
————
Total Non-Current Liabilities		
85
48
37
				
————
————
————
Total Liabilities		
5,077
8,455
5,290
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
Net Assets		
385,351
379,683
377,218
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————

EQUITY					
Reserves		
209,556
204,351
204,221
Accumulated funds		
175,795
175,332
172,997
				
————
————
————
Total Equity		
385,351
379,683
377,218
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
[The accompanying notes form part of these statements]
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
							
		

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 30 June 2014
			

		Asset
			
Notes Accumulated
Revaluation
				
Funds
Surplus
				
$’000
$’000
Balance at 1 July 2013		 172,997

Changes in accounting policy		
Correction of errors		
				
Restated total equity at 1 July 2013		
				

–
–

Total
$’000

204,221

377,218

–
–

–
–

————

————

————

172,997

204,221

377,218

————

————

————

Net result for the Year		
1,957
–
1,957
————
————
————
				
Other Comprehensive income					
Net increase / (decrease) in property, plant and equipment					
Valuation gains
9
–
6,176
6,176
Transfers on disposal		
841
(841)
–
				
————
————
————
Total other comprehensive income		
841
5,335
6,176
				
————
————
————
Total comprehensive income for the year		
2,798
5,335
8,133
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
Balance at 30 June 2014		
175,795
209,556
385,351
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————

Balance at 1 July 2012		 160,692

204,266

364,958

Changes in accounting policy		
–
–
–
Correction of errors		
–
–
–
————
————
————
				
Restated total equity at 1 July 2012		
160,692
204,266
364,958
				
————
————
————
Net result for the Year		
12,260
–
12,260
				
————
————
————
Other Comprehensive income					
Net increase / (decrease) in property, plant and equipment					
Transfers on disposal		
45
(45)
–
				
————
————
————
Total other comprehensive income		
45
(45)
–
				
————
————
————
Total comprehensive income for the year 		
12,305
(45)
12,260
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
Balance at 30 June 2013		
172,997
204,221
377,218
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
[The accompanying notes form part of these statements]
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
							
		

Statement of Cash Flows as at 30 June 2014				

			
Notes
Actual
Budget
Actual
				
2014
2014
2013
				
$’000
$’000
$’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES					
Payments					
		 Employee related		
(23,776)
(27,057)
(24,990)
		 Grants and subsidies		
(362)
(300)
(971)
		Other		
(16,729)
(9,378)
(16,401)
				
————
————
————
		Total Payments		
(40,867)
(36,735)
(42,362)
				
————
————
————
Receipts					
		 Reimbursements from the Crown Entity		
744
–
901
		 Sale of goods and services		
14,215
12,785
13,710
		 Interest received		
206
–
210
		 Retained taxes, fees and fines		
1,193
170
1,318
		 Grants and Contributions		
33,667
32,961
41,833
		Other		
2,019
4,420
2,065
				
————
————
————
		Total Receipts		
52,044
50,336
60,037
				
————
————
————
							
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
18
11,177
13,601
17,675
				
————
————
————
				
————
————
————
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Proceeds from sale of land and buildings, plant and
equipment and infrastructure system
95
95
11
Purchases of land and buildings, plant and
equipment and infrastructure systems

(9,942)

(10,947)

						
				
————
————
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
(9,847)
(10,852)
				
————
————
				
————
————

(16,915)
————

(16,904)
————
————

							
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH		
1,330
2,749
771
Opening cash and cash equivalents		
				
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
6
				
				

6,152

6,152

5,381

————

————

————

7,482
————
————

8,901
————
————

6,152
————
————

[The accompanying notes form part of these statements]
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
								
								

Service group statements as at 30 June 2014
								
		
Service Group 1 * Service Group 2 * Non Attritable **
Total
2014
2013
2014
2013
2014
2013
2014
2013
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
TRUST’S EXPENSES AND INCOME								
Expenses excluding losses								
Operating expenses								
Employee related
7,458
7,519
18,079
17,619
–
–
25,537
25,138
Other operating expenses
1,546
2,017
11,266
10,957
–
–
12,812
12,974
Depreciation and amortisation
1,312
889
5,943
5,839
–
–
7,255
6,728
Grants and subsidies
–
–
362
955
–
–
362
955
Total Expenses excluding losses

——— ———

10,316 10,425

——— ———

———

35,650

———

———

———

———

———

———

———

35,370

–

–

———

45,966

———

———

45,795

———

								
Revenue								
Sale of goods and services
643
516
11,936
12,303
–
–
12,579
12,819
Investment revenue
106
39
100
171
–
–
206
210
Retained taxes, fees and fines
–
–
1,186
1,318
–
–
1,186
1,318
Grants and contributions
543
143
4,937
6,030
29,527
36,622
35,007
42,795
Other revenue
17
419
1,895
509			1,912
928
Total Retained Revenue

——— ———
1,309

1,117

——— ———

———

20,054

———

———

20,331

———

———

29,527

———

———

36,622

———

———

50,890

———

———

58,070

———

								
Gain / (loss) on disposal
–
–
(2,967)
(15)
–
–
(2,967)
(15)
								
Net result

——— ———

———

——— ———

———

(9,007) (9,308) (18,563)

———

(15,054)

———

———

29,527

———

———

———

———

———

36,622

1,957

———

12,260

———

								
Other Comprehensive Income								
Items that will not be reclassified to net result								
Net increase / (decrease) in property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus
–
–
6,176
–
–
–
6,176
–

——— ———

Total Other Comprehensive Income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

–

–

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

6,176

–

–

–

6,176

———
–

———

———

———

———

———

———

(9,007) (9,308) (12,387)

(15,054)

29,527

36,622

8,133

12,260

———
——— ––———
––——— ––———
––———
——— ———

———
———

——— –———
———–
———

———
———
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ROYAL BOTANIC GARDENS & DOMAIN TRUST
								
								

Service group statements as at 30 June 2014 (continued)
								
		
Service Group 1 * Service Group 2 * Non Attritable **
Total
2014
2013
2014
2013
2014
2013
2014
2013
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
TRUST’S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES				
Current Assets								
Cash and cash equivalents
7,041
5,178
441
974
–
–
7,482
6,152
Receivables
46
49
809
1,286
–
–
855
1,335
Inventories
–
–
166
142
–
–
166
142
Total Current Assets

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

———

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

———

7,087

5,227

1,416

2,402

–

–

8,503

7,629

								
Non Current Assets								
Property, plant and equipment								
— Land and building
30,958 16,400 235,445 239,173
–
– 266,403 255,573
— Plant and equipment
1,398
574
3,934
4,616
–
–
5,332
5,190
— Infrastructure systems
2,036
78
49,380
52,334
–
–
51,416
52,412
— Collection assets
7,512
7,511
39,730
32,618
–
–
47,242
40,129
— WIP
2,891 20,294
8,641
1,281
–
–
11,532
21,575
Total Non-Current Assets

——— ———

———

———

———

——— ––——— ––———

——— ———

——— ––———

———

——— ––——— ––———

44,795 44,857 337,130

330,022

–

– 381,925 374,879

								
Total Assets
51,882 50,084 338,546 332,424
–
– 390,428 382,508

——— ———

——— ––———

———

——— ––——— ––———

								
Current Liabilities								
Payables
277
399
1,976
2,168
–
–
2,253
2,567
Provisions
800
803
1,939
1,883
–
–
2,739
2,686
Total Current Liabilities

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

———

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

———

1,077

1,202

3,915

4,051

–

–

4,992

5,253

								
Non-Current Liabilities								
Provisions
–
–
85
37
–
–
85
37

——— ———

Total Non-Current Liabilities

–

–

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

85

37

–

–

85

———

———

———

———

———

———
37

———

								
Total Liabilities
1,077 1,202
4,000
4,088
–
–
5,077
5,290

——— ———

———

———

———

———

———

———

								
Net Assets
50,805 48,882 334,546 328,336
–
– 385,351 377,218

———
——— ––———
––——— ––———
––———
——— ———

———
———

——— ––———
––——— ––———
––———
———

								
* The names and purposes of each service group are summarised in Note 5. 							
** Cluster grant funding is made on an agency basis and not to individual service groups. Consequently, Government 			
Contributions are included in the ‘Not Attributable’ column.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Australian Accounting Interpretations.
(d) Administered Activities
The Trust does not administer or control any
activities on behalf of the Crown Entity.

(a) Reporting Entity

(e) Borrowing Costs

The Royal Botanic Gardens & Domain Trust (the
Trust), is the reporting entity and is responsible for
two service groups as outlined in Note 5.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred, in accordance
with Treasury’s mandate to not-for-profit general
government sector entities.

The Trust is a NSW government Trust. The Trust is
a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal
objective). The reporting entity is consolidated as
part of the NSW Total State Sector Accounts.
As a result of the Government Sector Employment
Act 2013, employees of the Trust are reported
as employees of a Division of the Government
Service. Personal Services were provided by
Department of Premier and Cabinet up to 23
February 2014. From 24 February 2014 the Office
of Environment and Heritage has provided these
services as per Administrative Arrangement Order
2014 No. 11. The Trust reports employee related
information as “personnel services” in its financial
statements.				

(f) Insurance
The Trust’s ‘insurance activities’ are conducted
through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund
Scheme of self-insurance for Government entities.
The expense (premium) is determined by the
Fund Manager based on past claims experience.
(g) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax
		(GST)

These financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2014 have been authorised for issue by the
Board of Trustees on 22 September 2014.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The Trust’s financial statements are general
purpose financial statements which have been
prepared on accrual basis and in accordance with:
• applicable Australian Accounting Standards
(which include Australian Accounting
Interpretations);					
• the requirements of the Public Finance and
Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit
Regulation 2010 and;			
• the Financial Reporting Directions published in
the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General
Government Sector Entities or issued by the
Treasurer.
Property, plant and equipment are measured at
fair value. Other financial statement items are
prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention.
Judgements, key assumptions and estimations
management has made, are disclosed in the
relevant notes to the financial statements.
All amounts are rounded to the nearest one
thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian
currency.
(c) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements and notes comply with
Australian Accounting Standards, which include
44
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Income, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of GST, except that the:
• amount of GST incurred by the Trust as a
purchaser that is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of
an asset’s cost of acquisition or part of an item of
expense and				
• receivables and payables are stated with the
amount of GST included.
Cash flows are included in the statement of
cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST
components of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which are recoverable
from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office
are classified as operating cash flows.
(h) Income Recognition
Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration or contribution received or
receivable. Additional comments regarding the
accounting policies for the recognition of income
are discussed below.
(i) Parliamentary appropriations and
contributions
Parliamentary appropriations and contributions
from other bodies (including grants and
donations) are recognised as income when the
Trust obtains control over the assets comprising
the appropriations / contributions. Control over
appropriations and contributions is normally
obtained upon the receipt of cash.
ii) Sale of Goods					
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised as
revenue when the Trust transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets.

Rental revenue from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with AASB 117 Leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Royalty revenue is recognised in accordance
with AASB 118 Revenue on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement.
(iii) Rendering of Services				
Revenue is recognised when the service is provided
or by reference to the stage of completion (based
on labour hours incurred to date).			
(iv) Investment Revenue				
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective
interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
		

(i) Assets
(i) Acquisition of Assets
Assets acquired are initially recognised at cost.
Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents
paid or the fair value of the other consideration
given to acquire the asset at the time of its
acquisition or construction or, where applicable,
the amount attributed to that asset when initially
recognised in accordance with the requirements
of other Australian Accounting Standards.

must be available at a period that is not remote
and take into account the characteristics of the
asset being measured, including any sociopolitical restrictions imposed by government.
In most cases, after taking into account these
considerations, the highest and best use is the
existing use. In limited circumstances, the highest
and best use may be a feasible alternative use,
where there are no restrictions on use or where
there is a feasible higher restricted alternative use.
Fair value of property, plant and equipment is
based on a market participant’s perspective,
using valuation techniques (market approach,
cost approach, income approach) that maximise
relevant observable inputs and minimise
unobservable inputs. Also refer Note 9 and Note
10 for further information regarding fair value.
The Trust revalues each class of property, plant
and equipment at least every five years or with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of each asset in the class does not differ
materially from its fair value at reporting date.
Non-specialised assets with short useful lives
are measured at depreciated historical cost, as a
surrogate for fair value.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal
consideration, are initially recognised at their fair
value at the date of acquisition.

When revaluing non-current assets using the
cost approach, the gross amount and the related
accumulated depreciation are separately restated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset in orderly transaction between market
participants at measurement date.

For other assets valued using other valuation
techniques, any balances of accumulated
depreciation at the revaluation date in respect of
those assets are credited to the asset accounts
to which they relate. The net asset accounts are
then increased or decreased by the revaluation
increments or decrements.

Where payment of an asset is deferred beyond
normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price
equivalent; i.e. deferred payment amount is
effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate.
(ii) Capitalisation Thresholds			
Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or
forming part of a network costing more than
$5,000) are capitalised.		
(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment					
Physical non-current assets are valued in
accordance with the ‘Valuation of Physical
Non-Current Assets at Fair Value’ Policy and
Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts
fair value in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value
Measurement, AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment and AASB 140 Investment Property.
Property, plant and equipment is measured at
the highest and best use by market participants
that is physically possible, legally permissible
and financially feasible. The highest and best use

Revaluation increments are credited directly to the
revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that
an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in
respect of that class of asset previously recognised
as an expense in the net result, the increment is
recognised immediately as revenue in the net
result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised
immediately as expenses in the net result, except
that, to the extent that a credit balance exists in
the revaluation surplus in respect of the same
class of assets, they are debited directly to the
revaluation surplus.
As a not-for-profit entity, revaluation increments
and decrements are offset against one another
within a class of non-current asset, but not
otherwise.
Where an asset that has previously been revalued
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is being disposed of, any balance remaining in
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset is
transferred to accumulated funds.
(iv) Impairment of Property, Plant and
Equipment
As a not-for-profit entity, impairment under AASB
136 Impairment of Assets is unlikely to arise for
most of the Trust’s assets. As property, plant and
equipment is carried at fair value, impairment
can only arise in the rare circumstances where
the costs of disposal are material. Specifically,
impairment is unlikely for not-for-profit entities
given that AASB 136 modifies the recoverable
amount test for non-cash generating assets of notfor-profit entities to the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and depreciated replacement
cost, where depreciated replacement cost is also
fair value.
(v) Assets not able to be reliably measured
The Trust holds certain assets that have not
been recognised in the statement of financial
position because The Trust is unable to measure
reliably the value for the assets and those assets
are likely to be material. These assets are the
‘Herbarium collection’, which forms part of the
Collection Assets has a nil balance recorded in
the Trust’s asset register. Consideration of the
changing scientific value of the specimens over
time, the unique collection event (in time and
space) associated with each specimen, and the
irreversible changes to the original habitat of
most collection localities results in the Herbarium
collection not being capable of a reliable
valuation.
(vi) Depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment
Except for certain heritage assets, depreciation
is provided for on a straight line basis for
all depreciable assets so as to write off the
depreciable amount of each asset as it is
consumed over its useful life to the Trust.
All material separately identifiable components of
assets are depreciated over their useful lives.
Land is not a depreciable asset. Certain heritage
assets including original artworks and collections
and heritage buildings may not have a limited
useful life because appropriate curatorial and
preservation policies are adopted. Such assets
are not subject to depreciation. The decision
not to recognise depreciation for these assets is
reviewed annually.
Depreciable assets are depreciated from the date
of acquisition.
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Depreciation Rates
Building
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment

% Rate
1.25% to 25%
1% to 10%		
10% to 25%

(vii) Major Inspection Costs
When each major inspection is performed, the
labour costs of performing major inspections for
faults is recognised in the carrying amount of an
asset as a replacement of a part, if the recognition
criteria are satisfied
(viii) Restoration Costs
The estimated cost of dismantling and removing
an asset and restoring the site is included in the
cost of an asset, to the extent it is recognised as a
liability.
(ix) Maintenance
Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are
charged as expenses as incurred. Except where
they relate to the replacement of a part or
component of an asset, in which case the costs are
capitalised and depreciated.
(x) Leased Assets
A distinction is made between finance leases
which effectively transfer from the lessor to the
lessee substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased assets, and
operating leases under which the lessor does not
transfer substantially all such risks and benefits.
Where a non-current asset is acquired by means
of a finance lease, at the commencement of the
lease term, the asset is recognised at its fair value
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, at the inception of the lease.
The corresponding liability is established at the
same amount. Lease payments are allocated
between the principal component and the interest
expense.
Operating lease payments are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income in the
periods in which they are incurred.
(xi) Intangible assets
The Trust recognises intangible assets only if it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured
initially at cost. Where an asset is acquired at no
or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the
date of acquisition.
All research costs are expensed. Development costs
are only capitalised when certain criteria are met.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be finite.

Intangible assets are subsequently measured at
fair value only if there is an active market. As there
is no active market for the Trust’s intangible assets,
the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation.
The Trust’s intangible assets are amortised using
the straight line method over a period of between
five and 20 years.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment
where an indicator of impairment exists. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount and the reduction is
recognised as an impairment loss.
(xii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value,
usually based on the transaction cost, or face
value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less an
allowance for any impairment of receivables. Any
changes are recognised in the net result for the
year when impaired, the recognised or through
the amortisation process.
Short-term receivables with no stated interest
rate are measured at the original invoice amount
where the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(xiii) Inventories
Inventories held for distribution are stated at cost,
adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service
potential. A loss of service potential is identified
and measured based on the existence of a current
replacement cost that is lower than the carrying
amount. Inventories (other than those held for
distribution) are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost or ‘first in first out’ method.
The cost of inventories acquired at no cost or for
nominal consideration is the current replacement
cost as at the date of acquisition. Current
replacement cost is the cost the Trust would incur
to acquire the asset. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
(xiv) Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets, except those measured at fair
value through profit and loss, are subject to an
annual review for impairment. An allowance for
impairment is established when there is objective
evidence that the Trust will not be able to collect
all amounts due.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the allowance is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the net result for
the year.
Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed
through the net result for the year, where there
is objective evidence. However, reversals of
impairment losses on an investment in an equity
instrument classified as “available for sale”
must be made through the revaluation surplus.
Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets
carried at amortised cost cannot result in a
carrying amount that exceeds what the carrying
amount would have been had there not been an
impairment loss.
(xv) De-recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire; or if the Trust transfers the
financial asset:
• where substantially all the risks and rewards have
been transferred or				
• where the Trust has not transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards, if the Trust has not
retained control.
Where the Trust has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards or
transferred control, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Trusts continuing involvement in the
asset.
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expires.
(xvi) Trust funds
The Trust receives monies in a trustee capacity for
various trusts as set out in Note 19. As the Trust
performs only a custodial role in respect of these
monies, and because the monies cannot be used
for the achievement of the Trust’s own objectives,
these funds are not recognised in the financial
statements.
(xvii) Other Assets
Other assets are recognised on a historical cost
basis.
(j) Liabilities
(i) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Trust and other amounts.
Payables are recognised initially at fair value,
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usually based on the transaction cost or face
value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Shortterm payables with no stated interest rate are
measured at the original invoice amount where
the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(ii) Employee benefits and other provisions		
(a) Salaries and Wages, Annual Leave, Sick Leave
and On-Costs
Salaries and wages (including non-monetary
benefits), and paid sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render
the service are recognised and measured at the
undiscounted amounts of the benefit.
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. As such, it is required to be
measured at present value in accordance with
AASB 119 Employee Benefits although short
cut methods are permitted. Actuarial advice
obtained by Treasury has confirmed that the use
of a nominal approach plus the annual leave on
annual leave liability (using 7.9% of the nominal
value of annual leave) can be used to approximate
the present value of the annual leave liability. The
Trust has assessed the actuarial advice based on
the Trust’s circumstances and has determined that
the effect of discounting is immaterial to annual
leave.
Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise
to a liability as it is not considered probable that
sick leave taken in the future will be greater than
the benefits accrued in the future.

(c) Consequential on-costs
Consequential on-costs to employment are
recognised as liabilities and expenses where the
employee benefits to which they relate have been
recognised. This includes outstanding amounts
of payroll tax, workers’ compensation insurance
premiums and fringe benefits tax.
(iii) Other Provisions
Other provisions exist when: the Trust has a
present legal, or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
Any provisions for restructuring are recognised
only when the Trust has a detailed formal plan and
the entity has raised a valid expectation in those
affected by the restructuring that will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or
announcing its main features to those affected.
If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted at 7.9%, which is a
pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the liability.
(k) Fair value hierarchy

(b) Long Service Leave and Superannuation
The Trust’s liabilities for long service leave and
defined benefit superannuation are assumed
by the Crown Entity through the Office of
Environment and Heritage. The Trust accounts
for the liability as having been extinguished,
resulting in the amount assumed being shown as
part of the non-monetary revenue item described
as ‘Acceptance of the Crown Entity of employee
benefits and other liabilities’.

A number of the Trust’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. When measuring fair value, the
valuation technique used maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimises the use
of unobservable inputs. Under AASB 13, the Trust
categorises, for disclosure purposes, the valuation
techniques based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

Long service leave is measured at present value
in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.
This is based on the application of certain factors
(specified in NSWTC 14/04) to employees with
five or more years of service, using current rates of
pay. These factors were determined based on an
actuarial review to approximate present value.

— Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets/ liabilities that the Trust can access
at the measurement date.

The superannuation expense for the financial year
is determined by using the formulae specified in
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the Treasurer’s Directions. The expense for certain
superannuation schemes (i.e. Basic Benefit and
First State Super) is calculated as a percentage of
the employees’ salary. For other superannuation
schemes (i.e. State Superannuation Scheme
and State Authorities Superannuation Scheme),
the expense is calculated as a multiple of the
employees’ superannuation contributions.
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— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable, either
directly or indirectly.
— Level 3: inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Trust recognises transfers between levels of
the value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during the change has occurred.
Refer Note 10 for further disclosures regarding fair
value measurement of non-financial assets.
(l) Equity and reserves
(i) Revaluation surplus
The revaluation surplus is used to record
increments and decrements on the revaluation of
non-current assets. This accords with the Trust’s
policy on the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment as discussed in note 1(i) (iii).
(ii) Accumulated Funds
The category ‘accumulated funds’ includes all
current and prior period retained funds.
(m) Budgeted Amounts
The budgeted amounts are drawn from the
original budgeted financial statements presented
to Parliament in respect of the reporting period,
as adjusted for section 24 of the PFAA where
there has been a transfer of functions between
departments. Other amendments made to
the budget are not reflected in the budgeted
amounts.
(n) Comparative Information
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard
permits or requires otherwise, comparative
information is presented in respect of the previous
period for all amounts reported in the financial
statements. The Service Group Statements for
2013 have been restated to ensure that they
compare to the current financials, as better
financial information has been obtained on the
service groups.
(o) Changes in accounting policy, including New or
revised Australian Accounting Standards
(i) Effective for the first time in 2013–14
The accounting policies applied in 2013–14 are
consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as a result of the following new or revised
Australian Accounting Standards that have been
applied for the first time in 2013–14 including
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 119
Employee Benefits.

The impact of AASB 119 in the period of initial
application includes:
— Annual leave not expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related service was measured at present value
and classified as “non current” (Note 13). Impact
on aggregate employee benefits and related oncosts from discounting of the provision was not
material.
(ii) Issued but not yet effective
NSW public sector entities are not permitted to
early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards,
unless Treasury determines otherwise.
The following new Australian Accounting
Standards have not been applied and are not yet
effective. The Trusts considers that the application
of the standards when effective will not have a
material impact on the financial statements.
• AASB 9, AASB 2010-7 and AASB 2012-6
regarding financial instruments
• AASB 1031 Materiality
• AASB 1055 and AASB 2013-1 regarding
budgetary reporting
• AASB 2012-3 regarding offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
• AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136
— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for NonFinancial Assets
• AASB 2013-8 regarding Australian
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit
Entities — Control and Structured Entities
• AASB 2013-9 regarding the Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments
(Parts B and C)
• AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards

The impact of AASB 13 in the period of initial
application includes:
— Updated Note 1 regarding “revaluation of
property, plant and equipment”.
— A new note on “fair value measurement of nonfinancial assets” (Note 10), incorporating the new
AASB 13 fair value disclosure requirements.		
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2. EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES
(a) Employee related expenses			
Employee related services are acquired from the Office of Environment
and Heritage, Department of Premier and Cabinet and comprises: 		
			
Salaries and wages (Including annual leave)		
Redundancy payments		
Superannuation — defined benefit plans		
Superannuation — defined contribution plans		
Long service leave		
Workers’ compensation insurance		
Payroll and fringe benefits tax		
			
			
			
			

2014
$’000
20,637
590
405
1,428
645
573
1,259

2013
$’000
20,063
1,214
432
1,345
165
690
1,229

————

————

————
————

————		
————

25,537

25,138

(b) Other operating expenses			
Auditor’s remuneration — audit of the financial statements		
Internal audit		
Bad debt recoveries (net)
18
Operating lease rental expense — minimum lease payments		
Insurance		
Advertising		
Consultants		
Legal fees		
Purchase of plant and equipment under $5,000		
Plant and equipment hire		
Cost of sales		
Stores and provisions		
Maintenance		
Energy		
Contractors		
Telephone and communication		
Cleaning and waste collection		
Books, printing and publications		
Travel		
Motor vehicle		
Rates		
Security		
Other		
			
			
			
			

61
32
(13)
252
391
161
823
104
282
437
600
950
2,764
826
290
122
1,378
187
210
135
285
516
2,019

59
24
20
196
424
174
335
106
347
215
694
899
3,196
734
1,174
113
1,162
257
183
181
279
418
1,784

————

————

————
————

————		
————

12,812

12,974

Other operating expenses include legal fees, stores and provisions received contributed from vendors and sponsors
during the year. Total amount of in kind contributions received was $152,000 (2013 – $189,000) and included in
Note 2(d) Grants and Contributions.								

Maintenance Reconciliation:				
Maintenance expense, included above		
2,764
3,196
Maintenance related personnel services				
included in salaries and wages in note 2(a)		
9,589
8,296
			
————
————
Total maintenance expenses 		
12,353
11,492
————
————		
			
			
————
————
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(c) Depreciation expense

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Buildings
9
Infrastructure Systems
9
Plant and equipment
9
			
		
9,18
			
			

3,571
2,410
1,274

3,159
2,245
1,324

————

————

————
————

————		
————

7,255

6,728

(d) Grants and subsidies
NSW public sector agencies		

300

–

Federal government agencies		
Other		
			
			
			
			

–
62

55
900

————

————

————
————

————		
————

362

955

		During the year, the Trust paid $300,000 to the Office of Environment and Heritage to support its activities.
The Trust provides free of charge horticultural services to the Historical Houses Trust of NSW to maintain Government
House gardens and grounds, and a florist who develops flower arrangements for Government House functions. The
total cost of support to 30 June 2014 was $241,492 (2013 $273,857).				
			

3. REVENUES
					
(a) Sales of goods and services
Gross sales through the shops		

1,272

1,510

Lease income		
Location hire		
Parking meter		
Fees received		
Admissions		
Other		
			
		
			
			

4,997
3,147
2,507
654
–
2

4,844
2,996
2,772
664
32
1

————

————

————
————

————		
————

12,579

12,819

(b) Investment revenue
Interest revenue from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss		
Tcorp Hour-Glass Investment Facilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
			
			
			
			

106
100

139
71

————

————

————
————

————		
————

206

210

(c) Retained taxes, fees and fines
Parking fine and penalty income		
			
			
			
			

1,186

1,318

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,186

1,318

(d) Grants and contributions
Grants and donations		
NSW Government through Department of Premier and Cabinet		
Research grants		
Assets acquired free of charge		
Personnel Services assumed by Crown Entity		
			
			
			
			

3,522
29,527
940
–
1,018

4,761
36,622
584
81
747

————

————

————
————

————		
————

35,007

42,795

Grants and donations include $152,000 (2013 — $189,000) for in-kind contributions received from vendors and
sponsors. Research grants are applied to those areas of scientific endeavour sponsored by the grantor.
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		The following liabilities and / or expenses have been assumed by the Crown Entity :
Superannuation – defined benefit		
Long service leave		
Payroll tax		
			
			
			
			

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

408
580
30

437
280
30

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,018

747

					
(e) Other Revenue
Insurance recoveries		
Cost recoveries and other non user charges		
Other		
			
			
			
			

162
722
1,028

48
880
–

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,912

928

		
Insurance recoveries relate to hindsight adjustments for previous financial years. Cost recoveries and other non user
charges include damage and utility costs recovered from event customers and car parking recoveries from staff. Other
include $1.0 million for the value of statues and monuments recognised for the first time from the valuation of the
Collection Assets conducted this year (Refer Note 9 & Note 18).				
					

4. GAIN / (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
Proceeds from the sale of assets
Written down value of assets disposed
		
Gain / (Loss) on disposal of assets

		

9

95
(3,062)

11
(26)

————

————

————
————

————		
————

(2,967)

(15)

Loss on disposal of assets for 2014 include partial disposal of the Sydney Tropical Centre assets due to its major
refurbishment project as well as other infrastructure assets decommissioned or replaced during the year.		
				

5. SERVICE GROUPS OF THE TRUST							

Service Group 1 — Science and Public Programs				
This service group covers research of plant diversity cultivation and pathology, informing and contributing to policies
relating to flora, vegetation and biodiversity; enhancing and maintaining the State collection of preserved plants
and NSW Seedbank; designing and delivering plant related programs for specific visitor and outreach groups; and
delivering volunteer programs to support Trust objectives.

Service Group 2 — Botanic Gardens and Parks				
		This service group covers managing, making accessible and interpreting the landscapes and living collections of
plants in the botanic gardens; maintaining conservation collections; conserving and interpreting the Aboriginal and
cultural heritage of the botanic gardens; and making Trust sites available for community events, commercial events,
sport and recreation events.				
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2014
$’000

2013
$’000

5,086
8
2,388

3,813
10
2,329

6. CURRENT ASSETS — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			
Cash at bank and on hand		
Petty cash		
At call deposits — T Corp		
			
		
18
			
			

————

————

————
————

————		
————

7,482

6,152

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash on hand, and at
call deposits.				
			
Cash and cash equivalent assets recognised in the statement of financial position are reconciled at the end of the
financial year to the Statement of Cash Flows as follows:
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per Statement of cash flows)		
			
			

7,482

————
————

6,152

————		
————

		Restricted assets listed in Note 11 are included in the cash and cash equivalents amounts.
		Refer Note 21 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial instrument.

7. CURRENT ASSETS — RECEIVABLES
Sales of goods and services		
Less: Allowance for impairment
18
			
		
21
Retained taxes — GST receivable		
Prepayments 		
			
			
			
			

626
(9)

751
(93)

————

————

————

————

————
————

————		
————

617
212
26

855

658
499
178

1,335

Movement in the allowance for impairment				
Balance as at 1 July		
(93)
(51)
Amounts written off during the year		
33
16
Amounts recovered during the year (net)
2(b),18
13
–
Other adjustments		
38
–
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in profit or loss		
–
(58)
			
————
————
Balance at 30 June		
(9)
(93)
————
————		
			
			
————
————
Refer Note 21 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial instrument.

8. CURRENT ASSETS — INVENTORIES
Shop stock held for resale		
			
			
			
			

166

142

————

————

————
————

————		
————

166

142
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9. NON-CURRENT ASSETS — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
		
		
		

Land and
Building
$’000

Plant and Infrastructure
Equipment
Systems
$’000
$’000

Collection
WIP
Assets		
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

At 1 July 2013 — fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
		
Net carrying amount
		
		

299,161
(43,588)

11,092
(5,902)

83,638
(31,226)

40,129
–

21,575
–

455,595
(80,716)

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

21,575

374,879

311,792

11,723

84,620

47,242

11,532

466,909

255,573

5,190

52,412

40,129

————
————			
————

At 30 June 2014 — fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
		
Net carrying amount
		
		

(45,389)

(6,391)

(33,204)

–

–

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

266,403

5,332

51,416

47,242

11,532

(84,984)

————

381,925

————			
————

Reconciliations
		A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of 		
the current reporting period is set out below.						
Period ended 30 June 2014
Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Assets recognised first time
3(e),18
Disposals
4
Net revaluation increment
Transfer from WIP
Depreciation expense
2(c), 18
		
Net carrying amount at end of year
		
		

255,573
117
–
(1,142)
–
15,426
(3,571)

5,190
916
–
(95)
87
508
(1,274)

52,412
353
–
(693)
–
1,754
(2,410)

40,129
–
1,024
–
6,089
–
–

21,575
8,777
–
(1,132)
–
(17,688)
–

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

298,315

10,199

82,626

266,403

5,332

51,416

47,242

374,879
10,163
1,024
(3,062)
6,176
–
(7,255)

————

————
————

11,532

————
————

381,925

40,076

8,014

439,230

————			
————

At 1 July 2012 — fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
		
Net carrying amount
		
		

(40,665)

(4,948)

(28,980)

–

–

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

257,650

5,251

53,646

40,076

8,014

(74,593)

————

364,637

————			
————

								
At 30 June 2013 — fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
		
Net carrying amount
		
		

299,161
(43,588)

11,092
(5,902)

83,638
(31,226)

40,129
–

21,575
–

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

255,573

5,190

52,412

40,129

21,575

455,595
(80,716)

————

374,879

————			
————
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Reconciliations
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of 		
the previous reporting period is set out below.
		
		
		

Land and
Building
$’000

Plant and Infrastructure
Equipment
Systems
$’000
$’000

Collection
WIP
Assets		
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

Year ended 30 June 2013						
Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Disposals
4
Net revaluation increment
Transfer from WIP
Depreciation expense
2(c), 18
		
Net carrying amount at end of year
		
		

257,650
972
(22)
–
132
(3,159)

5,251
1,267
(4)
–
–
(1,324)

53,646
1,011
–
–
–
(2,245)

40,076
53
–
–
–
–

8,014
13,693
–
–
(132)
–

————

————

————

————

————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

————
————

255,573

5,190

52,412

40,129

21,575

364,637
16,996
(26)
–
–
(6,728)

————

374,879

————			
————

								
Revaluation
Land, buildings, and infrastructure’ were valued in 2011 except for the Domain Car Park building (revalued in 2012),
Plantbank (revalued in 2014) and the Sydney Tropical Centre (revalued in 2014). The collection assets were valued in
2011 except for the ‘Statues and Monuments’ (revalued in 2014). Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment are
reviewed internally by management on an annual basis.

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Fair value hierarchy				
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 9)				
Period ended 30 June 2014
					 Total fair
		
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
value
		
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
Land and Building
Infrastructure Systems
Collection Assets
		
Total
		
		

–
–
–

————

–

————
————

213,165
–
9,894

————

223,059

————
————

53,238
51,416
37,349

————

142,003

————
————

266,403
51,416
47,243

————

365,062

————
————

There were no transfers between Level 1 or 2 during the period.					
		
(b) Valuation techniques, inputs and processes
Level 2 Measurements
Land
Land has been valued using the market approach. The rates per square metre of land sold for open space purposes
have been directly compared to the subject property having regard to matters such as heritage restrictions, zoning,
location, topography, aspect, frontage, size, shape, date of contract execution and current market condition.
Domain Car Park
The Domain Car Park building was revalued using the market approach. The value of the car park was derived from
the direct comparison method and capitalisation of rental income approach.		
Collection assets
Collection assets under Level 2 measurement include a number of statues and monuments valued under the market
approach. These items were valued by comparing to known sales of similar assets.			
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Level 3 Measurements
Building & Infrastructure Systems
These assets include heritage buildings, scientific buildings and other assets of a specialised nature which do not
trade in the market place. They are valued under the cost approach based on actual cost information on more recent
assets and by utilising available costing guides to determine value based on the size and condition of the relevant
asset. It is difficult to comment definitively on quantitative information given the diversity of the asset base.
The assets have been physically inspected and valued using replacement costs based on their condition and structure.
Collection assets
Collection assets under Level 3 include artworks, library and rare books as well as a number of statues and monuments
valued under the cost approach. The assets have been physically inspected and valued using replacement costs
based on their condition and structure.			
(c) Reconciliation of Recurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 2014
			
Infrastructure
		
Building
Systems
		
$’000
$’000
Fair value as at 1 July 2013
41,333
52,412
Additions
117
353
Assets Recognised First Time
–
–
Revaluation increments recognised in other
comprehensive income — included in line item Net increase –
–
in property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus
Disposals
(1,142)
(693)
Transfer from WIP
15,426
1,754
Depreciation
(2,496)
(2,410)
		
————
————
Fair value as at 1 July 2014
53,238
51,416
————
————
				
————
————

Collection
Assets
$’000
32,511
–
205

Total Recurring
Level 3 Fair Value
$’000
126,256
470
205

4,633

4,633

–
–
–

(1,835)
17,180
(4,906)

————

37,349

————
————

————

142,003

————
————

11. RESTRICTED ASSETS
			
			
Cosh bequest		
Swane bequest		
Webster bequest		
Slade bequest		
Research 		
			
			
			
			

2014
$’000
492
31
130
205
218

2013
$’000
480
30
127
200
194

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,076

1,031

These contributions are held in TCorp cash facilities and are applied in accordance with the conditions on each
contribution. The Cosh bequest is for the purpose of the National Herbarium of NSW. The Swane bequest is for
the purpose of botany, horticulture, research, education, expeditions, statues, fountains and buildings at Mount
Annan Botanic Garden. The Webster bequest is to be used for the National Herbarium of NSW. The Slade Bequest
established to promote the harmony of mankind with the earth through the study and application of natural sciences.
Research grants are applied to those areas of scientific endeavour sponsored by the grantors.

12. CURRENT LIABILITIES — PAYABLES
Creditors		
1,349
1,799
Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs		
577
426
Unearned revenue		
327
342
			
————
————
			
2,253
2,567
————
————		
			
			
————
————
Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a maturity analysis of the above payables are
disclosed in Note 21.
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13. CURRENT / NON CURRENT LIABILITIES — PROVISIONS

			
2014
2013
			
$’000
$’000
Current
Annual leave		
1,887
1,885
Payable for Long Service Leave (on-cost)		
457
416
Payroll Tax on employee benefits		
395
385
			
————
————
			
2,739
2,686
————
————		
			
			
————
————
Non-Current
Annual leave 		
45
–
Payable for Long Service Leave (on-cost)		
24
22
Payroll Tax on employee benefits		
16
15
			
————
————
			
85
37
————
————		
			
			
————
————
Aggregate employee benefits and related on-costs				
Provisions — current		
2,739
2,686
Provisions — non-current		
85
37
Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs
12
577
426
			
————
————
			
3,401
3,149
————
————		
			
			
————
————
As a result of the Government Sector Employment Act 2013, employees of the Trust are reported as employees of
a Division of the Government Service. Personal Services were provided by Department of Premier and Cabinet up
to 23 February 2014. From 24 February 2014 the Office of Environment and Heritage has provided these services as
per Administrative Arrangement Order 2014 No. 11. The Trust reports employee related information as “personnel
services” in its financial statements.			

14. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(a) Capital commitments				
		Aggregate capital expenditure for the acquisition of goods contracted for at balance date and not provided for:
— Not later than one year		
			
Total (including GST)		
			
			

364

5,504

————

————

————
————

————		
————

364

5,504

(b) Operating lease commitments				
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and payable:		
— Not later than one year		
160
209
— Later than one year, and not later than five years		
109
229
			
————
————
Total (including GST)		
269
438
————
————		
			
			
————
————
The total commitments above includes input tax credits of $57,484 (2012–2013 $540,152) that are expected to be
recoverable from the ATO.

15. RELATED PARTIES							
The related parties are the trustees of the Royal Botanic Garden & Domain Trust.				
The following persons were trustees during the financial year:
KEN BOUNDY (Chair)
DIANA EILERT
SIBYLLE KRIEGER (Term expired 31 May 2014)
DR ROBYN McCONCHIE (Appointed 1 October 2013)

JOHN EGAN
SANDRA HOOK
TOM PINZONE (Term expired 25 April 2014)
MARIA ATKINSON (Appointed 26 April 2014)		

No loans or advances were provided to the chair or trustees of the Royal Botanic Garden & Domain Trust.		
Amounts totalling $54,280 (2013 – $26,190) have been paid to the trustees as salaries.			
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16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A contingent liability of approximately $1.3 million relating to claims for a major capital project. The timing and final
amount of the settlement of these claims are still to be agreed. The Trust is currently in negotiation with another party
to recover these claims as well as part of the capital costs already incurred.

17. BUDGET REVIEW

Net result				
		The Net result of $2.0 million is $0.3 million under the revised budget of $2.3 million.

Assets and liabilities				
		Total Net Assets of $385.4 million is $5.7 million over the revised budget of $379.7 million. This was mainly due to the
$6.1 million increase in asset revaluation reserves related to the revaluation of the statue and monument assets.

Cash flows				
Net increase in cashflow of $1.3 million is $1.4 million under the revised budget of $2.7 million. This is due to changes
in net result ($0.4 million) and total net assets ($1.0 million) in comparison to the budget.		

18. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET RESULT
			
			

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Net cash used on operating activities		
Depreciation
2(c), 9
Allowance for Impairment (net)
2(b)
Decrease / (increase) in provisions		
Increase / (decrease) in prepayments and other assets		
Decrease / (increase) in creditors		
Assets received free of charge		
Assets recognised first time
3(e), 9
Net gain / (loss) on sale of plant and equipment
4
			
Net result		
			
			

11,177
(7,255)
13
(264)
(439)
668
–
1,024
(2,967)

17,675
(6,728)
(42)
132
413
744
81
–
(15)

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,957

12,260

19. TRUST FUNDS
The Trust received a bequest which is held in a Miscellaneous Trust Fund which is used for specific purposes as
outlined in the bequest conditions. These monies are excluded from the financial statements as the Trust is clarifying
the use of the bequest for the achievement of its objectives. No drawdown has been made by the Trust since the
receipt of the bequest. The bequest is currently held in a term deposit account with Westpac Banking Corporation.		
The following is a summary of the transactions in the trust account:				
				
Cash balance at the beginning of the financial year		
Add: Receipts of bequest		
Add: Interest Revenue		
			
Cash balance at the end of the financial year 		
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1,253
–
33

1,123
90
40

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,286

1,253

20. LEASE							
The Trust has entered into a number of agreements whereby land and buildings owned by the Trust are leased to third
parties for the purpose of operating various commercial enterprises. The term of these agreements run from one to
twenty-one years.							
			
2014
2013
			
$’000
$’000
Details of the assets leased are:				
Land and buildings			
Gross amount of leased assets		
48,734
48,734
Accumulated depreciation		
(5,397)
(4,179)
			
————
————
			
43,337
44,555
————
————		
			
			
————
————
			
Depreciation expense for the year		
			
			

————

————

————
————

————		
————

1,218

1,218

Future minimum lease payments receivable				
Not later than one year		
750
938
Later than one year and not later than five years		

1,521

Later than five years		
			
Total future minimum lease payments		
			
			

6,732

2,083
7,820

————

————

————
————

————		
————

9,003

10,841

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Trust’s principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directly from the
Trust’s operations or are required to finance the Trust’s operations. The Trust does not enter into or trade financial
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
The Trust’s main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with the Trust’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualitative disclosures are included
throughout these financial statements.
The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk management and reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. Risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Trust, to set risk limits and controls and to monitor risks. Compliance with policies is
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on a continuous basis.
(a) Financial instrument categories
Financial Assets
Note
Category
				

Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
2014
2013

Class:					
Cash and cash equivalent
6
N/A
7,482
6,152
Receivables

7

Receivables (at amortised cost)

617

658

						
Financial Liabilities
Note
Category
Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
				
2014
2013

Class:					
Payables
12
Financial liabilities measured
1,349
2,225
			
(at amortised cost)			
Notes					
		1. Excludes statutory receivables and prepayments (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7).			
2. Excludes statutory payables and unearned revenue (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7).
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(b) Credit Risk
		Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Trust’s debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations,
resulting in a financial loss to the Trust. The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally represented by the carrying
amount of the financial assets (net of any allowance for impairment).
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Trust, including cash, receivables and authority deposits. No collateral
is held by the Trust. The Trust has not granted any financial guarantees.
Credit risk associated with the Trust’s financial assets, other than receivables is managed through the selection of
counterparties and establishment of minimum credit rating standards. Authority deposits held with NSW TCorp are
guaranteed by the State.
Cash
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances with Westpac Banking Corporation and call deposits with TCorp,
which have been rated “AAA” by Standard and Poor’s. Interest for TCorp on-call deposit is earned on daily bank
balances at the monthly average NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) 11am unofficial cash rate, adjusted for a
management fee to NSW Treasury.
The TCorp deposits at balance date were earning an average interest rate of 2.45%, while over the year the weighted
average interest rate was 2.47%.			
The Westpac deposits at balance date were earning an average interest rate of 2.92%, while over the year the
weighted average interest rate was 3.40%.

Accounts Receivable — Trade Debtors				
All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at balance date. Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to recover outstanding
amounts, including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. An allowance for
impairment is raised when there is objective evidence that the Trust will not be able to collect all amounts due. This
evidence includes past experience, and current and expected changes in economic conditions and debtor credit
ratings. No interest is earned on trade debtors. Sales are made on a 30 day term.
The Trust is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single trade debtor or group of debtors.
Based on past experience, debtors that are not past due (2014: $582,000; 2013: $128,000) and less than 6 months
past due (2014: $70,000; 2013: $49,000) are not considered impaired. Together, these represent 95% of the total trade
debtors. 		
The only financial assets that are past due or impaired are ‘sales of goods and services’ in the ‘receivables’ category of
the statement of financial position.
					
		
Total
Past due not
Considered
			
impaired
impaired
		
$’000
$’000
$’000

2014				
< 3 months overdue
64
64
–
3 months – 6 months overdue
6
6
–
> 6 months overdue
9
–
9

2013				
< 3 months overdue
65
65
–
3 months – 6 months overdue
–
–
–
> 6 months overdue
55
–
55

					
Notes:				
1. Each column in the table reports ‘gross receivables.
2. The ageing analysis excludes statutory receivables, as these are not within the scope of AASB 7 and excludes
receivables that are not past due and not impaired. Therefore, the ‘total’ will not reconcile to the receivables total
recognised in the statement of financial position.
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(c) Liquidity Risk
		Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due. The Trust
continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure adequate holding
of high quality liquid assets. The objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of overdrafts, loans and other advances.
The Trust’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment
of risk.
The liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or
not invoiced. Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with the policy set out in
NSW TC 11/12. For small business suppliers, where terms are not specified, payment is made not later than 30 days
from date of receipt of a correctly rendered invoice. For other suppliers, if trade terms are not specified, payment
is made no later than the end of the month following the month in which an invoice or a statement is received. For
small business suppliers, where payment is not made within the specified time period, simple interest must be paid
automatically unless an existing contract specifies otherwise. The financial liabilities of the Trust are non-interest
bearing and mature within 1 year.
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. The Trust’s exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk on the Trust’s deposits
with TCorp. The Trust has no exposure to foreign currency risk and does not enter into commodity contracts.
The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonably possible change in risk variable is outlined in the information
below, for interest rate risk and other price risk. A reasonably possible change in risk variable has been determined
after taking into account the economic environment in which the Trust operates and the time frame for the assessment
(i.e. until the end of the next annual reporting period). The sensitivity analysis is based on risk exposures in existence
at the statement of financial position date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013. The analysis assumes
that all other variables remain constant.
(e) Interest Rate risk
The Trust has no interest bearing liabilities. The Trust does not account for any fixed rate financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale. Therefore, for these financial instruments, a change in interest rates
would not affect profit or loss or equity. A reasonably possible change of +/- 1.0% is used, consistent with current
trends in interest rates. The basis will be reviewed annually and amended where there is a structural change in the
level of interest rate volatility. The Trust’s exposure to interest rate risk is set out below.
		
		
		
		

$’000
-1.0%
Carrying
Amount

Profit

Equity

$’000
+1.0%
Profit

Equity

2014							
Financial Assets							
Cash and Cash Equivalents
7,482
(75)
(75)
75
75
2013							
Financial Assets							
Cash and Cash Equivalents
6,152
(62)
(62)
62
62
					
			

22. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD							
There are no events subsequent to balance date that will materially affect the financial statements.		
				
(END OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)
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Governance & Organisational
Matters

1 | Executive Director Botanic Gardens and Centennial Parklands Kim Ellis, HRH Princess Laurentien of the Netherlands and NSW
Environment and Heritage Minister Rob Stokes launch an initiative to work towards the teaming up of NGOs, governments
and businesses to work to eliminate sources of micro-plastic pollution in Australia 2 | Tacca integrifolia 3 | Executive Director
Botanic Gardens and Centennial Parklands Kim Ellis catches up with staff

Corporate Governance

The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust is a statutory body
established by the Royal Botanic
Gardens and Domain Trust Act 1980.
The legislation defines the objectives,
powers and functions of the Trust
and its Board of Trustees, and vests
certain land and property in the
Trust. It also governs the Regulations
relating to all three Botanic Gardens
and the Domain. The Trust is formally
accountable to the Minister for the
Environment for fulfilling its statutory
requirements.
Non-executive Board members
are appointed by the Governor of
NSW on the recommendation of the
Minister for a renewable term of up to
four years. The Board’s membership
represents a diversity of expertise
and experience in horticulture, plant
sciences, commercial business,
construction, tourism, marketing, law,
industrial relations, education and
cultural and community affairs.
In 2013 –14 staff were employed
through the Office of Environment
and Heritage, Department of Premier
and Cabinet (NSW). The assets and
programs remain the responsibility
of the Trust.

Disclosure of Controlled
Entities

Legislative changes

Trustee’s disclosure

In 2013 –14 there were no changes to
Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain
Trust Act 1980.

There were no declarations from any
Trustee of conflicts of interest or gifts
received in 2013 –14.

Remuneration

Trust meeting attendance

Remuneration of Trustees is
determined in accordance with
the Public Service Commission’s
Classification and Remuneration
Framework for NSW Government
Boards and Committees. In 2013 –14
the Chairperson received an annual
fee of $30,000 and the other Trustees
each received $3675 per annum.

The Director, Finance and
Commercial Operations was
Secretary to the Trust during 2013 –14
and keeps the common seal. The
Senior Executive Assistant records
the minutes of the Trust. The Trust
met eight times in 2013 –14.

Trust liability
Trustees and employees of the Trust
are covered by the Treasury Managed
Fund for any legal liability, as long as
the action is not illegal or criminal or
outside the scope of their duties.

Ken Boundy (Chair)1
Diana Eilert

6 out of 8

Sandra Hook

8 out of 8

Best practice

Sibylle Krieger3

6 out of 7

In meeting the Trust objectives and
setting a clear strategic direction
for the organisation, the Trustees
are committed to best practice in
corporate governance. In 2013 –14,
Trustees conducted their activities
with reference to the Premier’s
Conduct Guidelines for Members
of NSW Government Boards and
Committees.

Tom Pinzone4

6 out of 7

Dr Robyn McConchie5

6 out of 6

Maria Atkinson6

1 out of 1

Land Disposal

It is certified that credit card usage
by officers of the Trust has been in
accordance with the following:

The Trust does not control any
subsidiaries.

8 out of 8
7 out of 7

Corporate Credit Card Use

Disclosure of Subsidiaries

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Egan2

The Trust has no controlled entities.

There were no lands disposed of in
2013–2014.

TRUSTEE

• Review of Credit Card Use — Best
Practice TC 05/06 15 August 2005
• Use of Purchasing Cards and
Electronic Payment Methods —
NSW TC 11/15, 13 December 2011

John

1

Mr Boundy reappointed 1 July 2014

2

Mr Egan’s tenure ended 25 June
2014

3

Ms Krieger’s tenure ended 31 May
2014

4

Mr Pinzone’s tenure ended 25 April
2014

5

Dr McConchie’s tenure began
1 October 2013

6

Ms Atkinson’s tenure began
26 April 2014

• Treasurer’s Directions 205 (payment
of expenses by Credit Card)
Premiers Department Policy
Guidelines
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THE TRUSTEES
KEN BOUNDY
MAgr Sc, MBA, FAICD
(Appointed Chair 1 July 2012;
Reappointed 1 July 2014, present
term expires 30 June 201)6
Ken is a company director, business
owner and executive coach with a
keen interest in plants, conservation
and biodiversity. He is Chairman
of Regnan Governance, Research
and Engagement and of Hydrasyst,
a ‘clean tech’ water treatment
business. Ken also sits on the boards
of Horticulture Australia, Australian
Bauxite and NetComm Wireless.
In previous executive roles, Ken
headed up Tourism Australia and
held senior leadership roles in private
sector businesses in the wine, food
and building materials industries,
after starting his career as a research
agronomist — where he helped
develop lupins as a grain crop. He is
a part owner of Corinna Wilderness
Experience, an ecotourism
destination in the Tarkine region of
north-west Tasmania.

JOHN EGAN
BA (Hons), MBA, FAIM, FAICD, FIMC
(Appointed 18 March 2010; present
term expires 25 June 2014)
John is a career management
consultant, with particular interests in
board governance, the alignment of
strategy with organisation structure
and executive reward. He has
advised the majority of Australia’s
top 200 companies. John served on
the Federal Council of the Institute
of Management Consultants for a
number of years, including a term
as President, and was Chairman of
the Advisory Board of the Faculty
of Economics and Business at the
University of Sydney from 2001 to

64

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

2010. John is an Adjunct Professor
in the School of Business and is an
Honorary Fellow of the University of
Sydney. He is a board member of
the Foundation and Friends of the
Botanic Gardens, a member of the
Planning and Estate Management
Committee and has a particular
interest in cool-climate gardens (www.
thebraesgarden.com).

DIANA EILERT
BSc, MCom
(Appointed 19 June 2013; present
term expires 18 June 2016)
Diana is a senior non-executive
Director who brings three main skills
to boards — extensive operational
experience as a Group Executive/
CEO running large businesses, a
strength in strategy and, in recent
years, significant work in digital
business and models. She is
appointed to the boards of ASX listed
companies Veda and Navitas as well
Networks NSW, Queensland Urban
Utilities and AMP Life. Previously she
was a director of digital businesses
realestate.com.au and ‘onthehouse’.
Diana’s significant P&L experience
includes running Suncorp’s entire
insurance business and, in her 10
years with Citibank, running the
mutual funds business, the mortgage
business and Direct Bank. She
developed her strategy and digital
skills as a Principal with AT Kearney,
as a Partner with IBM and, recently,
as Head of Strategy & Corporate
Development with News Ltd.
Diana holds a BSc (Syd) in maths
and chemistry, a MCom (UNSW)
in Finance and Marketing and is a
member of Chief Executive Women.

SANDRA HOOK
GAIDC
(Appointed 7 November 2012;
present term expires 6 November
2015)
Sandra is an experienced nonexecutive director with extensive
strategic, marketing and digital
expertise gained over a 25 year
professional career as a CEO and
group executive. She is an investor
and board advisor to digital
businesses focused on disruptive
technologies, and advises companies
on strategy, commercialisation and
navigating digital disruption. Sandra
has previously managed businesses
or divisions for Foxtel, Federal
Publishing Company, Murdoch
Magazines, and Fairfax and most
recently, as the CEO, Sandra drove
NewsLifeMedia’s (News Ltd) rapid
transition from a traditional print
operation to a successful multiplatform and digital business. Sandra
currently serves on the board of the
Sydney Harbour Federation Trust
and the Sydney Fish Markets. She is
chair of the Royal Botanic Gardens &
Domain Trust’s public engagement
committee and previously served 9
years on the board of Horticulture
Australia Ltd.

SIBYLLE KRIEGER
LLB (Hons), LLM, FAICD, MBA
(Appointed 1 June 2010; term expired
31 May 2014)
Sibylle Krieger has 35 years of
broad commercial experience
as a lawyer, company director,
economic regulator and independent
consultant. She was a partner of two
major commercial law firms for 22
years and held several management
roles. She holds an MBA from
Melbourne Business School. Sibylle
has served as a Tribunal member

of the Independent Pricing and
Regulatory Tribunal for two terms
and as a Trustee of Sydney Grammar
School. Sibylle has held nonexecutive board roles in Sydney
Ports Corporation, Allconnex Water
in Queensland and TasWater in
Tasmania. Sibylle chairs the Trust’s
Finance, Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

TOM PINZONE
BEng (UNSW), FIEAust, MICE, MAICD
(Reappointed 26 April 2010; term
expired 25 April 2014)
Tom is a consulting civil engineer
with over 35 years professional
experience. For the majority of his
career he worked with GHD Pty
Ltd and held a variety of senior
technical, managerial and corporate
positions, including six years as a
director. Prior to his retirement he
was GHD’s Global Leader Transport.
He was the co-author and leader of
a widely quoted series of Australian
Infrastructure Report Cards. He
has a long history of service with
professional and industry associations
at executive and committee level,
including Engineers Australia, Consult
Australia, Infrastructure Partnerships
Australia and the Warren Centre
and has served on a number of
government advisory groups.
Tom is very involved with Trust
projects and chairs the Trust’s
Planning and Estate Management
Committee. Tom is also a member
of the Trust’s Finance, Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

DR ROBYN McCONCHIE’S

MS MARIA ATKINSON

BSc London MA(Ed) Macquarie PhD
LSU

B.A.Sc

(Appointed 1 October 2013; present
term expires 30 September 2016)
Robyn McConchie is Head of the
Department of Plant and Food
Sciences in the Faculty of Agriculture
and Environment. She has been
involved in postharvest research and
education for over 30 years working
on minimising pesticide use, and
more recently food safety.
Robyn has led many international
research and capacity building
projects in postharvest across SE
Asia, the Pacific and Africa and
from 2006–2010 was Director of the
University’s Research Institute for Asia
and the Pacific.
For the past two years Robyn has
been involved in the Australia Awards
teaching postharvest of grains in
Africa and is leading a collaborative
project with the Australian
horticulture industry, to establish a
Fresh Produce Safety Centre at the
University of Sydney, to drive research
that will provide food safety solutions
for the fresh food produce industry.

(Appointed 26 April 2014; present
term expires 25 April 2017)
Maria is currently a Director of
both Maria Atkinson Consultancy,
through which she advises private
and public sector clients and XO
— an angel investment business
with particular focus on impact
investments. Maria also holds
several Non-Executive Directorships
and Advisory Board memberships.
She has a Bachelor’s degree from
University of Technology Sydney
in Applied Science, Environmental
Biology and a Biology Laboratory
Technician Certificate from Newcastle
TAFE. In January 2012, Maria was
awarded a Member of the General
Division of the Order of Australia for
service to the construction and real
estate sector, particularly as a leader
and contributor to environmentally
sustainable building development
in Australia.
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Insurance Coverage and
Risk Management
The Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust insurance coverage
with the NSW Treasury Managed
Fund includes policies for workers
compensation, public liability, motor
vehicle, property and miscellaneous
insurance.
The Trust continued to use the
Office of Environment and Heritage
(OEH) reporting system for injuries
and risks across the three Gardens.
All incidents were investigated and
any associated maintenance issues
addressed via a work request system.
The Trust’s three WHS (Workplace
Health and Safety) committees
conducted regular workplace
inspections and reviewed all
incident and hazard reports. Trust
staff incorporated risk mitigation

strategies into all activities, usually via
safe work method statements and by
requiring all contractors and licensees
to address risk mitigation via key
documents such as contracts and
licence agreements.
In the last year business and
financial risks have been thoroughly
scrutinised. These risks range from
variations in the business viability
of key lessees and licensees and
other funding sources, to traffic
and parking issues, requiring event
hirers make risk assessments of
their events and make provision for
increased numbers of people and
vehicles in and around all the other
uses of Trust lands. On such events,
extensive stakeholder consultation is
done. NSW Police, Ambulance and
Fire Services are all participants in
consultation and are often on site as
needs dictate.

Reporting incidents
The Trust is committed to ensuring
the safety of people including
employees, contractors, visitors and
tourists, with a large number of public
users accessing its facilities on a daily
basis.
It also incorporates management of
business and reputational risks in its
planning and procedures under the
guidance and objectives of the Office
of Environment and Heritage risk
management policy.
Regular reports were provided to
the Trust’s Executive and appropriate
remedial action was taken on
individual incidents, whilst work
is planned for where patterns of
incidents were identified.
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People Matters

The NSW Government made the
decision to bring the resources of the
Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain
Trust together with those of the
Centennial Park and Moore Park Trust
to achieve organisational efficiencies
and to take effect in 2013 –14. The
Executive Director of both Trusts
began the process of integrating the
two organisations in the reporting
year. He will be responsible for
leading the changes into 2014 –15
while directing the development
and implementation of strategic,
corporate and business plans with
strong environmental, social and
economic, outcomes.

The Executive Team

Kate Faithorn

Kim Ellis

BComms, Design & Publishing Cert,
MIA

MBA, BA(MIL), GRAD DIP HRM
Executive Director, Botanic Gardens
and Centennial Parklands
Kim was appointed to the position
this year and is responsible for
integrating the Royal Botanic
Gardens and Domain Trust and
Centennial Parklands and ensuring
they meet their strategic operational,
financial and custodial objectives.
He provides high level advice to
the Minister and Trustees and
manages the important and complex
stakeholder relationships with the
community, government and industry.

David Mabberley
(Resigned September 2013)
MA (Oxon), PhD (Cantab)
Executive Director

Director, Public Engagement
Responsible for the management
of public engagement for the
organisation, including community
education, marketing, public
relations, volunteer programs, tour
programs and design and editorial
services.

Jimmy Turner
BScAgr(Hons) MSc
Director, Horticultural Operations
Responsible for the management
of all horticultural and operational
services and assets across all sites
of the Royal Botanic Gardens and
Domain Trust.

Donna Payne
(Resigned January 2014)

Accountable to the Royal Botanic
Gardens and Domain Trust, Chief
Executive Office of Environment
and Heritage, and the Minister for
the Environment for the efficient
and effective management of the
organisation, including its horticultural,
scientific, educational, public
engagement, marketing, commercial
and corporate support functions.

AssocDip (Food Technology),
BBus&Com, MBT, GradCertBus&Tech

Dr Brett Summerell

BA (Acctg) CPA

BScAgr (Hons), PhD

Director, Finance and Commercial
Operations

Deputy Executive Director, Science
and Conservation
Responsible for the leadership
and management of Science and
Conservation Programs, including
systematics, ecological and
horticultural research, as well as the
National Herbarium of NSW, library
and laboratories. Brett was Acting
Executive Director after Professor
Mabberley’s resignation and prior to
the appointment of Kim Ellis.

Director, Development
Responsible for the development,
implementation, monitoring and
evaluation of strategies and programs
that secure fundraising targets and
objectives for the organisation.

Bronwyn Shead

Responsible for the organisation’s
financial resource management and
commercial operations, including
leasing, venue management and the
Trust’s retail services. Secretary to the
Trust and the Finance, Audit and Risk
Management Committee.
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Assistance from Consultants
The Trust enlisted the external assistance for the following projects:
$50,000 or less
Consultant

Category

Title of Project work		

Cost ($)

Robert Alder
Amalgamation
		

Amalgamation of RBG&DT
and CPMPT

1

40,234

Blue Grass Consulting Pty Ltd
Amalgamation
		

Amalgamation of RBG&DT
and CPMPT

1

27,273

Scharp Design Pty Ltd
Capital Works
		

Amalgamation of RBG&DT
and CPMPT

1

20,300

Zenith Strategy Associates Pty Ltd
Amalgamation
		

Amalgamation of RBG&DT
and CPMPT

1

16,484

Principals Pty Ltd

Business Review

Garden & Domain Propositions

1

20,500

Ernst & Young

Business Review

Review of Retail Services

1

39,657

The Nielsen Group Aust Pty Ltd
Management Services
Procurement & Licencing
		Contractor

1

12,300

Number

Cost ($)

$50,000 or more

70

Consultant

Category

Title of Project work

Cox Architecture Pty Ltd

Management services

Master Plan

1

465,845

Kathy Jones and Associates Pty Ltd

Management services

Master Plan

1

74,943

MI Associates

Business Review

Review of Venue Management

1

53,835

ANNUAL REPORT 2013–2014

Policies and Plans for
People
The Office of Environment and
Heritage provides a range of shared
services to its Agencies. This includes
human resources and industrial
relations support for Trust staff who
work under the overarching policies
and plans for people management.
New staff are provided with
comprehensive inductions which
introduce them to such policies.
Ongoing training and regular work
and development plans ensure the
policies are implemented on a day to
day basis.
Some policies given particular
emphasis include Work Health and
Safety policies, the Code of Conduct
and the Respectful Workplace Policy
all of which ensure a safe, ethical and
respectful workplace environment.
In addition to the overarching
guidance from of the Office of
Environment and Heritage, the Trust
also engages in its own activities to
ensure that we meet the needs of
the wider community and promote
departmental values around diversity,
accessibility and non-discrimination.

Our Multicultural Focus

Disability Plans

The Trust, led by its Aboriginal staff,
will be participating in the Gurung
Children’s Parade for Corroboree
this coming year as part of the
organisation’s commitment to
increasing awareness of
Aboriginal culture.

Currently the Trust is working on
upgrading its website, one of the
main aims of which is to make it more
accessible for those with disabilities.

In addition, the Trust uses its flagship
festival Autumn in Your Gardens
(including Autumn Vibes) as a vehicle
to celebrate not only plants, but
cultural diversity in our community.

Disability Access and Services
Information is currently available for
all three Gardens on the website and
for various activities such as public
events.

The considerable talents of our
volunteer guides means that we
are also able to cater for German,
French and Spanish visitors on
guided walks, an this year our first
Mandarin and Cantonese-speaking
guide completed training at the
Blue Mountains Botanic Garden.
Four guided walks were provided
specifically for Chinese speakers in
the last year.
The Trust also provides online visitor
surveys in Mandarin, Japanese,
German and Spanish — representing
our larger non-English-speaking
visitor groups. The majority of the
signage boards in the Domain also
feature multi-lingual messages.
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WORKFORCE STATISTICS

Senior Executive Information
Six different staff members, all male, were employed in senior
executive positions as demonstrated by the following table:
SES Level
Gender
		
SES04
SES05
SES02
SES02
SES02

M
M
M
M
M

Remuneration
$ (total package value)
136,030
160,849
225,161
123,833
73,474

Numbers of Staff by Category
Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust
1. Size of Agency (Headcount)

2012

2013

2014

%.Change

Headcount at Census Date

335

326

318

-2.45%

Non-casual Headcount at Census Date

317

298

290

-2.68%

					
2. Workforce Diversity (EEO) Survey Response Rate
(Non-casual Headcount at Census Date)
2012
2013
2014
Non-casual Headcount at Census Date

317

298

290

Non-casual Workforce Diversity (EEO) Survey
Respondents at Census Date

254

243

237

80.13%

81.54%

81.72%

Response Rate

Note: All calculated Workforce Diversity data in Tables 1 and 2 are based on employee status as at Census Date.

Staffing Statistics
30 June
2014

30 June
2013

30 June
2012

30 June
2011

139

146

151

151

Senior officers

4

4

5

4

Senior executive service

3

2

2

1

Other*

110

110

126

130

Total

256

262

284

286

Horticulturists/rangers

The numbers reported are full-time equivalent (FTE) employees.
*Other includes building and mechanical trade staff, clerical staff, casual teachers, education officers, herbarium
assistants, librarian, sales and information staff, scientific officers and technical officers.
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Location of Officers
Location

30 June
2014

30 June
2013

30 June
2012

30 June
2011

The Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney

170

172

190

196

The Blue Mountains Botanic Garden, Mount Tomah

34

37

38

37

The Australian Botanic Garden, Mount Annan

52

53

56

53

256

262

284

286

Total
The numbers reported are full-time equivalent (FTE) employees.

Workforce Diversity Actual Staff Numbers
Remuneration
Level of substantive
position

Total Staff
(Men,
Women)

Respondents

Men

Women

Aboriginal
& Torres
Strait
Islanders

People
from
racial,
ethnic,
ethnoreligious
minority
groups

People
whose
language
first spoken
as a child
was not
English

People
with a
disability

People with
a disability
requiring
workrelated
adjustment

$0 – $42,625

20

18

14

6

2

1

1

1

1

$42,625 – $55,985

28

23

24

4

2

1

1

1

1

$55,985 – $62,587

94

74

51

43

2

6

7

7

0

$62,587 – $79,199

71

64

37

34

1

5

5

2

0

$79,199 – $102,418

47

37

20

27

1

4

4

1

1

$102,418 – $128,023

19

11

10

9

0

0

0

0

0

$128,023 > (Non SES)

8

8

5

3

0

1

0

0

0

$128,023 > (SES)

3

2

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

290

237

164

126

8

18

18

18

3
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Trends in the Representation of Workforce Diversity Groups				
Workforce Diversity Group

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

Women

50%

45.4%

43.6%

43.4%

Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders

2.6%

3.0%

3.3%

3.3%

People whose First Language Spoken
as a Child was not English

19.0%

6.6%

6.3%

7.5%

N/A

5.6%

5.4%

5.1%

People with a Disability
People with a Disability Requiring
Work-Related Adjustment

1.5%
1.2%
1.2%
1.2%		
		

Trends in the Distribution of Workforce Diversity Groups
Workforce Diversity Group

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

Women
Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders

100
100

105
N/A

109
N/A

110
N/A

People whose First Language Spoken
as a Child was not English

100

97

N/A

96

People with a Disability

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

People with a Disability Requiring
Work-Related Adjustment

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

Note 1: A Distribution Index of 100 indicates that the centre of the distribution of the Workforce Diversity group across
salary levels is equivalent to that of other staff. Values less than 100 mean that the Workforce Diversity group tends to
be more concentrated at lower salary levels than is the case for other staff. The more pronounced this tendency is, the
lower the index will be. In some cases the index may be more than 100, indicating that the Workforce Diversity group is
less concentrated at lower salary levels.
Note 2: The Distribution Index is not calculated where Workforce Diversity group or non-Workforce Diversity group
numbers are less than 20.

Workforce Diversity Groups — Graphs				
Workforce Diversity Group
Women

60.0%

2012

2013

2014

50%

45.4%

43.6%

43.4%

Trends in Workforce Diversity Group
Women
Benchmark / Target

40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
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2012

2013

2014

Workforce Diversity Group
Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

2.6%

3.0%

3.3%

3.3%

Trends in Workforce Diversity Group
Aboriginal People and Torres Strait Islanders
3.5%
3.0%
2.5%
2.0%
1.5%

Benchmark / Target

2012

2013

2014

1.0%
0.5%
0.0%

Workforce Diversity Group
People whose First Language
Spoken as a Child was not English

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

19.0%

6.6%

6.3%

7.5%

Trends in Workforce Diversity Group
People whose First Language Spoken as a Child was not English
Benchmark / Target
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%

2012

2013

2014

10.0%
5.0%
0.0%

Workforce Diversity Group
People with a Disability

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

N/A

5.6%

5.4%

5.1%

Trends in Workforce Diversity Group
People with a Disability
20.0%
15.0%

2012

2013

2014

10.0%
5.0%
0.0%
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Workforce Diversity Group
People with a Disability Requiring Work
Related Adjustment

Benchmark/Target

2012

2013

2014

1.5%

1.2%

1.2%

1.2%

Trends in Workforce Diversity Group
People with a Disability Requiring Work Related Adjustment
Benchmark / Target

2012

2013

2014

4.0%
2.0%
0.0%

Work health and safety
The Trust adheres to the policy and
strategic direction set out by the
Office of Environment and Heritage
in its Work Health and Safety Policy
(2014) and the Work Health and
Safety Act 2011. The Trust’s Safety
Advisory Group (SAG) and Work
Health and Safety (WHS) Committees
at each site has overseen the
continuation of this strategy, which is
set out under four key areas:
1. Executive and senior management
safety leadership
2. Planning, accountability and
governance
3. Risk management of high
consequence risks
4. Creating a learning and innovative
organisation
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WHS committees continue to
conduct regular checks of work areas.
The reporting methodology for
Worksafe Online and toolbox talks
that was streamlined across all Trust
sites from May 2012, with emphasis
placed on reporting ‘near misses’ has
helped raise safety awareness. This
was reflected by last year’s statistics.

Whilst lost time injuries (LTI’s) remain
static from last year the number of
incidents has reduced by more than
50% from 182 incidents in 2012 –13
to 90 in 2013 –14. All WorkCover
incidents were investigated. There
were no prosecutions under the
Work Health and Safety Act 2011.

Lost time injuries
Total
Monthly average
Average frequency rate

2013–14

2012–13

2011–12

2010–11

9

9

12

15

0.75

0.75

1.00

1.25

12

12

22

22

OVERSEAS TRAVEL
Name &
Position

Countries/ cities
visited

Purpose of visit

Duration

Total cost

Cost to the
Trust

Source of
other funds

Mrs Karen
Wilson, Senior
Research
Scientist

New York, USA
London, UK

To attend and speak on
biodiversity informatics projects
involving plants & animals at the
Monocots V conference in New
York and visit the Natural History
Museum in London, the RBG
Kew and Cambridge University
herbarium in relation to her
current research projects

06 – 25 Jul
2013

$8100

$1115

Karen Wilson

Dr Dale Dixon,
Manager
Collections,
National
Herbarium

New York,
Chicago,
Washington, St
Louis and San
Francisco, USA

To visit different herbaria
in relation to the upgrade/
redevelopment of the Herbarium

21 Jul – 08
Aug 2013

$6000

Nil

Foundation and
Friends

Dr Nathalie
Nagalingum,
Research
Scientist,
National
Herbarium

New Orleans,
Gainsville,
Miami, Berkeley
& Tucson, USA
Mexico City &
Xalapa, Mexico

To visit different botanic gardens
with a long history of cycad
research

24 Jul – 18
Sep 2013

$20,855

Nil

Australian
Biological
Resources
Study, Churchill
Fellowship

Dr Karen
Sommerville,
Rainforest
Conservation
Scientist

Fort Collins,
Colorado, USA

To attend 2nd International
Symposium on Plant
Conservation

09 – 18 Aug
2013

$5501.75

Nil

Foundation
and Friends
Rainforest
Conservation
Project

Professor David
Mabberley,
Executive
Director

Longwood
Gardens,
Pennsylvania,
USA

To attend Longwood Visiting
Committee meetings as one of
its members until 2014

10 – 17 Aug
2013

Unknown

Nil

Longwood
Gardens,
Pennsylvania

Dr Barry Conn,
Principal
Research
Scientist

Bogor, Indonesia

To attend the Flora Malesiana
Symposium and post-symposium
field studies

25 Aug – 08
Sep 2013

$4225.48

$4225.48

Dr Peter
Wilson, Senior
Research
Scientist

Bogor, Indonesia

To attend the Flora Malesiana
Symposium

25 Aug – 01
Sep 2013

$2653.31

$2653.31

Professor David
Mabberley,
Executive
Director

Bogor, Indonesia

To chair one of the sessions
of the 9th International Flora
Malesiana Symposium and
attend other sessions

26 – 31 Aug
2013

$8478.80

$8478.80

Mr Brad Horan,
A/Director of
Horticultural
Operations

Dallas, St
Louis, Chicago,
New York,
Philadelphia,
Washington and
San Francisco,
USA

To visit different Gardens in
relation to the RBG’s Master Plan
development

29 Aug – 26
Sep 2013

$10,799.28

Mr Troy Mason,
Supervisor,
Upper Gardens

Auckland &
Hamilton, New
Zealand

To judge the Green Flag Awards
and tour the Auckland Botanic
Gardens

19 – 25 Oct
2013

$1545

Foundation and
Friends / Selffunded

$385.95

Parks Forum
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Name &
Position

Countries/ cities
visited

Purpose of visit

Duration

Total cost

Cost to the
Trust

Frances
Jackson,
Manager

Dunedin, New
Zealand

To attend Botanic Gardens
Australia & New Zealand and
Botanic Gardens Conservation
International Combined
Congress

19 – 26 Oct
2013

$2390

$2390

Dr Brett
Summerell,
Deputy
Executive
Director,
Science &
Conservation

Dunedin, New
Zealand

To attend and present keynote
paper at the 5th Global Botanic
Gardens Congress

20 – 23 Oct
2013

$1640

$1640

Dr Cathy
Offord,
Manager,
Horticultural
Research

Dunedin, New
Zealand

To attend and make a
presentation at the 5th Global
Botanic Gardens Congress

20 – 25 Oct
2013

$2767.13

$872.13

Botanic
Gardens
Conservation
International

Mr Clarence
Slockee,
Coordinator,
Aboriginal
Programs

Dunedin, New
Zealand

To attend Joint 6th Biennial
Botanic Gardens Australia &
New Zealand Congress and
5th Global Botanic Gardens
Congress

20 – 23 Oct
2013

$1003.59

$503.59

Botanic
Gardens
Conservation
International

Donna Osland,
Manager
Volunteer
Programs

Dunedin and
Christchurch,
New Zealand

To attend Joint 6th Biennial
Botanic Gardens Australia & New
Zealand and 5th Global Botanic
Gardens Congress and the 13th
Australasian Volunteer Guides in
Botanic Gardens Conference

20 Oct – 02
Nov 2013

Unknown

Nil

Foundation and
Friends

Dr Matt Renner,
Australian
Biological
Resources
Study
Postdoctoral
Fellow, National
Herbarium

Auckland, New
Zealand

To attend the John Child
Bryophyte and Lichen Workshop
and visit the Herbarium at the
Auckland War Memorial Museum

20 Nov – 13
Dec 2013

$3250

Nil

Self-funded

Dr John Martin,
Wildlife Officer

Auckland, New
Zealand

To attend EcoTas13, the joint
conference of the New Zealand
Ecological Society and the
Ecological Society of Australia
and present the outcome of the
flying-fox relocation

24 – 30 Nov
2013

$2683

$2683

Dr Matthew
Laurence,
Senior Technical
Officer

Auckland, New
Zealand

To attend 19th Australasian Plant
Pathology Society Conference

25 – 30 Nov
2013

$1952.73

Nil

Commonwealth
Department
of Agriculture,
Forestry &
Fisheries

Dr Edward Liew,
Senior Research
Scientist

Auckland, New
Zealand

To attend 19th Australasian Plant
Pathology Society Conference

25 – 30 Nov
2013

$2852.73

Nil

Commonwealth
Department
of Agriculture,
Forestry &
Fisheries
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Source of
other funds

Name &
Position

Countries/ cities
visited

Purpose of visit

Duration

Total cost

Cost to the
Trust

Source of
other funds

Daniel Bishop,
Manager
Horticulture,
Geoff Duggan,
A/Manager
Technical
Services,
Graeme
Errington,
Technical
Officer

Dalat, Vietnam
and Luang
Prabang, Laos

To consult on Garden
infrastructure in relation to
thematic design detail of
Landscape Masterplan

07 – 28 Mar
2014

$12,000

Nil

HSBC, Arcadia
and Viet and
Laos Botanic
Gardens

Randy Sing,
Nursery
Supervisor

Singapore

To work at the Gardens by the
Bay to gain knowledge /skills
that will benefit the Biome
project

15 – 29 Mar
2014

$4162

Nil

Foundation and
Friends

Dr Matt Renner,
Australian
Biological
Resources
Study
Postdoctoral
Fellow, National
Herbarium

Chicago, USA

To visit the Field Museum
of Natural History to learn
taxonomy and nomenclature
from experts and to collect
samples, examine and help
curate Australian and New
Zealand herbarium material

17 Mar – 12
Apr 2014

$4200

Nil

Self-funded

Louise Clifton

Frankfurt
& Munich,
Germany and
Manchester &
London, UK

To represent Sydney at the
Destination NSW UK/ Germany
Mission

23 – 28 Mar
2014

unspecified

$525

Blue Mountains
Lithgow and
Oberon Tourism

Dr Matthew
Laurence,
Diagnostics
& facilities
Coordinator,
Plant Disease
Diagnostic Unit

Lord Howe
Island

To conduct a pest & disease
survey on Lord Howe Island

24 – 27 Mar
2014

$3700

Nil

Lord Howe
Island Board

Dr Nathalie
Nagalingum,
Research
Scientist

Tuscon, USA

To visit the University of Arizona
in relation to the 2nd part of her
Winston Churchill Fellowship

30 Mar – 17
Apr 2014

$3620

Nil

Churchill Trust
Fellowship

Chris Cole,
Horticulturist
and Mark
Viler, Senior
Horticulturist,
ABGMA

Luang Prabang,
Laos

Provide specialist technical
training in plant propagation
and advice on sustainable
horticulture techniques and
permaculture design principles
to horticultural staff of Pha Tad
Ke Botanic Garden.

13 Jun – 27
Jun 2014

$3236.54 per
person

Nil

HSBC

Paul Nicholson

Florida, USA

To work with horticultural and
botanical staff at the Montgomery
Botanical Centre and Fairchild
Tropical Gardens on their
extensive palm collections, to
gain skills & knowledge to share
with RBGDT in palm grove
rejuvenation project.

1 – 25 July
2014

$7484

Nil

Foundation
and Friends
Scholarship
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Access to Information

The Government Information (Public
Access) Act 2009 (GIPA) exists to
make Government information more
accessible. In accordance with the
Trust’s obligations under the Act, the
annual report includes information
on the release of information and
the total number of valid access
applications received by the Trust.
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During the reporting year, a decision
was made to include all applications
made between 1 July 2013 up to
and including those made on 23
February 2014 in this annual report.
One application was received and
processed during that time.
The figures for any application from
24 February 2014 to 30 June 2014

will be included in the Office of
Environment and Heritage annual
report which provides administration
for the Trust under the GIPA.
Information identified for proactive
release under section 7 of the Act
is available on the Trust’s website at
www.rbgsyd.nsw.gov.au.

Reviews
The Trust conducted one internal
review in 2013 –14. The objective of
the internal audit was to assess the
adequacy of the controls supporting
the parking and fines processes
within Royal Botanic Gardens. Risks
were assessed and an action plan
is currently being developed to be
implemented in 2014 –15. The scope
of the audit was limited to the period
1 July 2013 to 31 May 2014.
No reviews were conducted by or on
behalf of the body under Part 5 of
PPIPA.

Consumer Response
Some 8,500,000 visits were recorded
across the three Gardens and the
Domain. Despite this large number
of visitors, only 146 people provided
feedback in writing, by phone or
in-person.
Details of general complaints
received are provided in the table
below:
Nature of complaint

In response to infrastructure and
service complaints, the Trust
implemented measures to improve
cleanliness in toilets by increasing
cleaning from three times per day to
four times per day.
Event complaints are managed on
a case by case basis.
In the transition to the newly
managed Tomah Gardens Restaurant,
there were a number of complaints
but with the acclaimed chef and
restaurateur Sean Moran now fully
settled in, there have been numerous
excellent reviews.
Every year approximately 18,000
people queue up to see in the New
Year’s Eve fireworks from the free
access area at Mrs Macquarie’s
Point. While there were many
compliments received about the
night, this year some people while
on site complained about queue
management to the free public areas.
The Trust has noted these complaints
and taken steps to improve the

process for the coming year.
We received many compliments
regarding the Australian Botanic
Garden with 82 people very
satisfied with their visit. Many
praised customer service, the visitor
experience and venue hire, garden
presentation, tours and the mountain
bike track. Just eight people
commented negatively, with two
requesting better signage.
In addition to general feedback, there
was a call for public input into the
first draft Master Plan for the Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney and Domain
in their almost 200 year history which
generated over 1200 responses
from the community including from
businesses, government bodies and
interest groups. An in depth external
analysis of all draft Master Plan
feedback has been commissioned by
the Trust and will be released during
2015. The goal of the consultation
process is to provide an opportunity
to create a unified vision for the
Garden and Domain.

No. of complaints

Infrastructure and Services		
— Royal Botanic Garden, Sydney
12
— Australian Botanic Garden
3
— Blue Mountains Botanic Garden
0
Events

13

Restaurants

12

Other

93

Total

146
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ACCESS DIRECTORY

Trust Head Office & The Royal
Botanic Garden, Sydney

The Australian Botanic Garden,
Mount Annan

The Blue Mountains Botanic
Garden, Mount Tomah

Mrs Macquarie’s Road,
Sydney 2000

Mount Annan Road,
Mount Annan 2567

Bells Line of Rd,
Mount Tomah 2758

Ph. (02) 9231 8111
Fax (02) 9251 4403

Ph (02) 4634 7900
Fax (02) 4634 7950

Ph (02) 4567 3000
Fax (02) 4567 2037

Garden offices and reception
8.30 am – 5 pm Monday to Friday

Open all year round 10 am – 5 pm
except Christmas Day

Open all year round except
Christmas Day

Garden Shop
9.30 am – 5 pm (closes at 4.30 pm
during winter months)
(02) 9231 8125

Visitor Centre
10 am – 4.30 pm

9 am – 5.30 pm Monday to Friday

Community education service
(02) 9231 8134

Education service
(02) 4634 7974

Free guided walks
10.30 am every day
1 pm Monday – Friday (March to
November)

Melaleuca House Café
(02) 4648 3318

Botanical information service
(02) 9231 8154
Plant pathology diagnostic service
(02) 9231 8186
Botanic Gardens Restaurant & Café
(02) 9241 2419
Pavilion on the Park restaurant &
Kiosk
(02) 9232 1322

Free guided tours most days
leaving from the Visitor Centre

Weddings and venue hire
(02) 4634 7903
Macarthur Centre for Sustainable
Living
(02) 4647 9828

9.30 am – 5.30 pm Saturday, Sunday
& public holidays
Visitor Centre
9 am – 5 pm Monday to Friday
9.30 am – 5 pm Saturday, Sunday
& public holidays
Tours
Self-guided and guided tours
including volunteer guided tours,
Garden Shuttle Tour and audio
tours
World Heritage Exhibition Centre
Weddings and venue hire
Waratah Education Centre and
Wollemi Room conference facilities
(02) 4567 3000
Garden Shop
10.15 am – 4.45 pm
(02) 4567 3010
The Jungle Lodge accommodation
(02) 4567 3019
Restaurant Tomah
0421 552 746
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WE THANK

The Trust is very grateful for
the generous support received
throughout 2013 –14.
We recognise below the significant
contributions made by individuals
and private foundations over the
past five years, either directly to the
Trust or through the Foundation
and Friends of the Botanic Gardens.
We are greatly appreciative of
the support provided by past and
present donors, including generous
commitments by those who have
made a bequest provision in the
future. We extend our sincerest
thanks to the Foundation and Friends
for their unwavering commitment
and recognise the support, both
financial and in-kind, provided by our
many sponsors and members of our
Corporate Club.

Major Donors
Estate of Clive and Lorna Backhouse,
Roslyn Baker, Beswick Family Fund,
Greg and Myra Bell, Tom Breen and
Rachael Kohn, Eden Foundation,
James O Fairfax AC, John B Fairfax
AO, Neville Grace, David and Kathryn
Groves, Dr Alistair Hay, Douglas and
Tim Jackson, Susan Maple-Brown
AM and the late Robert MapleBrown AO, Jamoca Foundation, Tony
Maxwell and Robyn Godlee, Neilson
Foundation, Geoffrey O’Conor and
Rachel O’Conor, Gretel L Packer,
Roslyn Packer AO, Dr Jan Roberts
and Prof Ken Roberts AM, Alex and
Dorothy Robertson, Estate of Cliffina
Thersey Rathbone, Hermon Slade
Orchid Fund, Estate of Josephine
Swane, the Tieck Family, Mary
Whitton, Anonymous (3)

Donors
Ruth Armytage AM, Robert and
Simone Arnott, Clive and Patricia
Austin, Prof Carrick Chambers AM
and Margaret Chambers, the Clayton
Family, Robert and Janet Constable,

Jennifer Crivelli, Peter and Penny
Curry, Dr Ian and Diana Daly, Prof
Noel Dan AM and Adrienne Dan,
Elizabeth Davis OAM, Dr Gillian
Davies, Raoul de Ferranti and Dr
Merrilyn Sleigh, Julie Drew and
Michael Grace AM, Richard and
Harriet England, Jane and Justice
Peter Garling, Sue Gazal, Kelvin and
Anne Geddes, Greatorex Foundation,
Georgina Grubb, Dr Kate Guy and
the late Bill Guy, David Healey, Dr
Max and Tess Hooper, Liv-Better
Foundation, the late Nina Loder,
Judith MacIntyre, the late Cyril and
Margaret Maloney, Ian McLachlan,
Mundango Abroad, Bill and Sarah
Nelson, Playoust Family Foundation,
Mark Sampson, Reginald Seally, Sam
and Helen Sheffer, Siemon Family,
Alice Simpson and Robbie Feyder,
Prue Socha, Maxine Stewart, Ron
and Lois Stewart Bequest, Prof Colin
Sullivan AO and Janette Sullivan,
Dr Peter Valder OAM, Edward
and Morna Vellacott, Jill Wran AM,
Anonymous (2)

Charitable and Government
Grants
Arcadia
Australian Biological Resources Study
Australian Flora Foundation
Australia Research Council
Balnaves Foundation
Bjarne K Dahl Trust
Community Heritage Grant
Department of Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry
Department of Sustainability,
Environment, Water, Population and
Communities
Destination NSW
Endeavour Energy
Family and Community Services NSW
The Fenner School of Environment
and Society
Hermon Slade Foundation
Horticulture Australia Limited
Housing NSW

Hunter’s Hill Community Grants
NSW Office of Environmental and
Heritage — North West Region
NSW National Parks Foundation
Palm and Cycad Society of Australia
Plant Health Australia
Roads and Maritime Services
Vincent Fairfax Family Foundation

Principal Conservation
Partner
HSBC Bank Australia

Major Sponsors
AGL
BHP Billiton/Illawarra Coal
Bloomberg LP
Corrs Chambers Westgarth
Landcom
TransGrid

Sponsors
Alpine Nurseries
Eden Gardens
Four Seasons Hotel Sydney
Interlink Roads
Neutrog
Northcote Pottery
Oasis Horticulture
Oceanic Bio
Pillingers Hiring Service
Proteaflora
Treloar Roses
Tyrrell’s Wines
Yates

Corporate Club
Andrew (Boy) Charlton Pool
Corrs Chambers Westgarth
KPMG
People & Culture Strategies
Printzone
Thinc
Turning Green
Trippas White Group
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